CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

(1) THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

San Francisco is a city and county chartered by the State of California and as such can exercise the
powers as both a city and a county under state law. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the accompanying financial statements present the City and County of San Francisco (the
City or primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are
included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operations or financial
relationships with the City.

As a government agency, the City is exempt from both federal income taxes and California State
franchise taxes.

Blended Component Units

Following is a description of those legally separate component units for which the City is financially
accountable that are blended with the primary government because of their individual governance or
financial relationships to the City.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (The Authority) — The voters of the City created the
Authority in 1989 to impose a voter-approved sales and use tax of one-half of one percent, for a
period not to exceed 20 years, to fund essential traffic and transportation projects. In 2003, the voters
approved Proposition K, extending the city-wide one-half of one percent sales tax with a new 30 year
plan. A board consisting of the eleven members of the City’s Board of Supervisors serving ex officio
governs the Authority. The Authority is reported in a special revenue fund in the City’s basic financial
statements. Financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from their finance and
administrative offices at 100 Van Ness Avenue, 26" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco City and County Finance Corporation (The Finance Corporation) — The Finance
Corporation was created in 1990 by a vote of the electorate to allow the City to lease-purchase $20
million (plus 5% per year growth) of equipment using tax-exempt obligations. Although legally
separate from the City, the Finance Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary
government because its sole purpose is to provide lease financing to the City. The Finance
Corporation is governed by a three-member board of directors approved by the Mayor and the Board
of Supervisors. The Finance Corporation is reported as an internal service fund. Financial statements
for the Finance Corporation can be obtained from their administrative offices at City Hall, Room 336,
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco Parking Authority (The Parking Authority) — The Parking Authority was created in
October 1949 to provide services exclusively to the City. In accordance with Proposition D authorized
by the City’s electorate in November 1988, a City Charter amendment created the Parking and Traffic
Commission (DPC). The PTC consists of five commissioners appointed by the mayor. Upon creation
of the PTC, the responsibility to oversee the City’s off-street parking operations was transferred from
the Parking Authority to the PTC. The staff and fiscal operations of the Parking Authority were also
incorporated into the PTC. Beginning on July 1, 2002, the responsibility for overseeing the operations
of the PTC became the responsibility of the Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA) pursuant to
Proposition E which was passed by the voters in November 1999. Separate financial statements are
not prepared for the Parking Authority. Further information about the Parking Authority can be
obtained from the MTA administrative offices at 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 7" Floor, San Francisco,
CA 94102.

Discretely Presented Component Units

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (The Agency) — The Agency is a public body, corporate and
politic, organized and existing under the Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California.
Seven commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern it. The Agency has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and
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economic development opportunities Citywide. Included in its financial data are the accounts of the
San Francisco Redevelopment Financing Authority (SFRFA), a blended component unit of the
Agency. The SFRFA is a separate joint-powers authority formed between the Agency and the City to
facilitate the long-term financing of Agency activities. The Agency’s governing commission serves as
the Board of Directors of the SFRFA.

In May 2002, the Public Initiatives Development Corporation (PIDC) was formed to develop affordable
housing on the Agency’s behalf. The PIDC is reported as a blended component unit of the Agency,
due to the Board of the PIDC being comprised of management of the Agency and other appointed
individuals. Future funding will be dependent on the Agency.

The Agency’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City, and the Agency does
not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The Agency is reported in a separate
column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for
the Agency through the appointment of the Agency’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the
Agency’s budget. Disclosures related to the Agency, where significant, are identified separately
throughout these notes. Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Agency’s finance
department at 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 5™ Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103.

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) — The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation.
The TIDA was authorized in accordance with the Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997 and
designated as a redevelopment agency pursuant to Community Redevelopment Law of the State of
California. Seven commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the
City’s Board of Supervisors, govern the TIDA. The specific purpose of the TIDA is to promote the
planning, redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse, and conversion of the property known
as Naval Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience, welfare, and common benefit of
the inhabitants of the City. The TIDA has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing
and economic development opportunities on Treasure Island.

The TIDA’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City and does not provide
services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The TIDA is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the TIDA
through the appointment of the TIDA's Board and the ability of the City to approve the TIDA’s budget.
Disclosures related to the TIDA, where significant, are separately identified throughout these notes.
Separate financial statements are not prepared for TIDA. Further information about TIDA can be
obtained from their administrative offices at 410 Palm Avenue, Building 1, Room 223, Treasure
Island, San Francisco, CA 94130.

Non-Disclosed Organizations

There are other governmental agencies that provide services within the City. These entities have
independent governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for them. The City’s basic
financial statements, except for certain cash held by the City as an agent, do not reflect operations of
the San Francisco Airport Improvement Corporation, San Francisco Health Authority, San Francisco
Housing Authority, Private Industry Council of San Francisco, San Francisco Unified School District
and San Francisco Community College District. The City is represented in two regional agencies, the
Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District, both of which are
also excluded from the City’s reporting entity.
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(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to
a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information. This
information is presented only to facilitate financial analysis.

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Agency funds, however, report only assets and liabilities and cannot be said to have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
The City considers property tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. All other revenues are considered to be available if they are generally
collected within 120 days of the end of the current fiscal period. It is the City’s policy to submit
reimbursement and claim requests for federal and state grant revenues within 30 days of the end of
the program cycle and payment is generally received within the first or second quarter of the following
fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to vacation, sick
leave, claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, other local taxes, grants and subventions, licenses, and interest associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when the City receives cash.

42



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

The San Francisco International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City-owned
commercial service airport in the San Francisco Bay Area.

The San Francisco Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco
Water Enterprise (Water Enterprise). The Water Enterprise is engaged in the distribution of water
to the City and certain suburban areas.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of Hetch
Hetchy Water and Power Department (Hetch Hetchy). The department is engaged in the
collection and conveyance of approximately 85% of the City’s water supply and in the generation
and transmission of electricity.

The Municipal Transportation Agency Fund accounts for the activities of the Municipal
Transportation Agency (MTA). The MTA was established by Proposition E, passed by the City’s
voters in November 1999. The MTA includes the San Francisco Municipal Railway (MUNI), San
Francisco Municipal Railway Improvement Corporation (SFMRIC), and the operations of the
Department of Parking and Traffic (DPT), which includes the Parking Authority. MUNI was
established in 1912 and is responsible for the operations of the City’s public transportation
system. SFMRIC is a nonprofit corporation established to provide capital financial assistance for
the modernization of MUNI by acquiring, constructing, and financing improvements to the City’'s
public transportation system. DPT is responsible for proposing and implementing street and traffic
changes and oversees the City’s off-street parking operations. DPT is a separate department of
the MTA. The parking garages fund accounted for the activities of various non-profit corporations
formed by the Parking Authority to provide financial and other assistance to the City to acquire
land, construct facilities, and manage various parking facilities.

The San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center Fund accounts for the activities of the
San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center (SFGH), a City-owned acute care hospital.

The San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise Fund (formerly known as the Clean Water
Program) was created after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition in 1976, authorizing
the City to issue $240 million in bonds for the purpose of acquiring, construction, improving, and
financing improvements to the City municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.

The Port of San Francisco Fund accounts for the operation, development, and maintenance of
seven and one-half miles of waterfront property of the Port of San Francisco (Port). This was
established in 1969 after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition to accept the transfer
of the Harbor of San Francisco from the State of California.

The Laguna Honda Hospital Fund accounts for the activities of Laguna Honda Hospital, the
City-owned skilled nursing facility which specializes in serving elderly and disabled residents.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Permanent Fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.
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= The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one City
department to another City department on a cost-reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds
account for the activities of the equipment maintenance services, centralized printing and mailing
services, centralized telecommunications and information services, and lease financing through
the Finance Corporation.

= The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds reflect the activities of the Employees’
Retirement System and the Health Service System. The Retirement System accounts for
employee contributions, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from investments. It also
accounts for the disbursements made for employee retirement benefits, withdrawals, disability
and death benefits as well as administrative expenses. The Health Service System accounts for
contributions from active and retired employees and surviving spouses, City contributions, and
the earnings and profits from investments. It also accounts for the disbursements to various
health plans and health care providers for the medical expenses of beneficiaries.

= The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the Treasurer's Office
investment pool. The funds of the San Francisco Community College District, San Francisco
Unified School District, and the Trial Courts of the State of California are accounted for within the
Investment Trust Fund.

= The Agency Funds account for the resources held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf
of: the State of California, human welfare, community health, and transportation programs.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

In general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges to other City departments from the General Fund,
Water Enterprise and Hetch Hetchy. These charges have not been eliminated because elimination
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported in the statement of activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal
service funds are charges for customer services including: water, sewer and power charges, public
transportation fees, airline fees and charges, parking fees, hospital patient service fees, commercial
and industrial rents, printing services, vehicle maintenance fees, and telecommunication and
information system support charges. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service
funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
(c) Budgetary Data

The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental funds on a substantially modified accrual basis
of accounting except for capital project funds and certain debt service funds which substantially adopt
project length budgets.
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The budget of the City is a detailed operating plan, which identifies estimated costs and results in
relation to estimated revenues. The budget includes (1) the programs, projects, services, and
activities to be provided during the fiscal year, (2) the estimated resources (inflows) available for
appropriation, and (3) the estimated charges to appropriations. The budget represents a process
through which policy decisions are deliberated, implemented, and controlled. The City Charter
prohibits expending funds for which there is no legal appropriation.

The Administrative Code Chapter 3 outlines the City’s general budgetary procedures, with Section 3.3
detailing the budget timeline. A summary of the key budgetary steps are summarized as follows:

Original Budget

(1) Departments and Commissions conduct hearings to obtain public comment on their proposed
annual budgets beginning in December and submit their budget proposals to the Controller's
Office no later than February 21.

(2) The Controller's Office consolidates the budget estimates and transmits them to the Mayor’s
Office no later than the first working day of March. Staff of the Mayor’s Office analyze, review and
refine the budget estimates before transmitting the Mayor's Proposed Budget to the Board of
Supervisors.

(3) By the first working day of May, the Mayor submits the Proposed Budget for selected
departments to the Board of Supervisors. The selected departments are determined by the
Controller in consultation with the Board President and the Mayor’'s Budget Director. Criteria for
selecting the departments include (1) that they are not supported by the City’s General Fund or
(2) that they do not rely on the State’s budget submission in May for their revenue sources.

(4) By the first working day of June, the Mayor submits the complete Proposed Budget to the Board
of Supervisors along with a draft of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance prepared by the
Controller’s Office.

(5) Within five working days of the Mayor's proposed budget transmission to the Board of
Supervisors, the Controller reviews the estimated revenues and assumptions in the Mayor’s
Proposed Budget and provides an opinion as to their accuracy and reasonableness. The
Controller also may make a recommendation regarding prudent reserves given the Mayor’'s
proposed resources and expenditures.

(6) The designated Committee (usually the Budget Committee) of the Board of Supervisors conducts
hearings, hears public comment, and reviews the Mayor's Proposed Budget. The Committee
recommends an interim budget reflecting the Mayor’'s budget transmittal and, by June 30, the
Board of Supervisors passes an interim appropriation and salary ordinances.

(7) Not later than the last working day of July, the Board of Supervisors adopts the budget through
passage of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance, the legal authority for enactment of the budget.

Final Budget

The final budgetary data presented in the basic financial statements reflects the following changes to
the original budget:

(1) Certain annual appropriations are budgeted on a project or program basis. If such projects or
programs are not completed at the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations, including
encumbered funds, are carried forward to the following year. In certain circumstances, other
programs and regular annual appropriations may be carried forward after appropriate approval.
Annually appropriated funds, not authorized to be carried forward, lapse at the end of the fiscal
year. Appropriations carried forward from the prior year are included in the final budgetary data.

(2) Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the approval of the Mayor and the Board of
Supervisors, e.g. supplemental appropriations. Additionally, the Controller is authorized to make
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certain transfers of surplus appropriations within a department. Such adjustments are reflected in
the final budgetary data.

The Annual Appropriation Ordinance adopts the budget at the character level of expenditure
within departments. As described above, the Controller is authorized to make certain transfers of
appropriations within departments. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board
of Supervisors is the department level.

Budgetary data, as revised, is presented in the basic financial statements for the General Fund.
Final budgetary data excludes the amount reserved for encumbrances for appropriate
comparison to actual expenditures.

(d) Deposits and Investments
Investment in the Treasurer’s Pool

The Treasurer invests on behalf of most funds of the City and external participants in accordance with
the City's investment policy and the California State Government Code. The City Treasurer who
reports on a monthly basis to the Board of Supervisors manages the Treasurer’s pool. In addition, the
function of the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the City’s investment
policy and to monitor compliance with the investment policy and reporting provisions of the law
through an annual audit.

The Treasurer’s investment pool consists of two components: 1) pooled deposits and investments
and 2) dedicated investment funds. The dedicated investment funds represent restricted funds and
relate to bond issues of the Enterprise Funds and the General Fund’s cash reserve requirement. In
addition to the Treasurer’s investment pool, the City has other funds that are held by trustees. These
funds are related to the issuance of bonds and certain loan programs of the City. The investments of
the Employees’ Retirement System and deposits and investments of the Redevelopment Agency are
held by trustees (note 5).

The San Francisco Unified School District (School District), San Francisco Community College
District (Community College District), and the City are involuntary participants in the City’s investment
pool. As of June 30, 2009, involuntary participants accounted for approximately 95.4% of the pool.
Voluntary participants accounted for 4.6% of the pool. Further, the School District, Community
College District, trial courts of the State of California and the Transbay Joint Powers Authority are
external participants of the City’s pool. At June 30, 2009, $565.4 million was held on behalf of these
external participants. The total percentage share of the City’s pool that relates to these three external
participants is 19%. Internal participants accounted for 81% of the pool.

For reports on the external investment pool, contact the Office of the Treasurer, Room 140, City Hall,
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Investment Valuation

Investments are carried at fair value, except for certain non-negotiable investments that are reported
at cost because they are not transferable and have terms that are not affected by changes in market
interest rates, such as collateralized certificates of deposits and public time deposits. The fair value of
investments is determined monthly and is based on current market prices. The fair value of
participants’ position in the pool approximates the value of the pool shares. The method used to
determine the value of participants’ equity is based on the book value of the participants’ percentage
participation. In the event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the overdraft is
covered by the General Fund and a payable to the General Fund is established in the City’s basic
financial statements.

Employees’ Retirement System (Retirement System) — Investments are reported at fair value.
Securities traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at
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current exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market price are reported at
estimated fair value derived from third party pricing services. Purchases and sales of investments are
recorded on a trade date basis.

The fair values of the Retirement System’s real estate investments are based on net asset values
provided by the investment managers. Partnership financial statements are audited annually as of
December 31 and net asset values are adjusted monthly or quarterly for cash flows to/from the
Retirement System, investment earnings and expenses, and changes in fair value. The Retirement
System has established leverage limits for each investment style based on the risk/return profile of
the underlying investments. The leverage limits for core and value-added real estate investments are
50% and 60% respectively. The leverage limits for high return real estate investments depend on
each specific offering. The underlying real estate holdings are valued periodically based on appraisals
performed by independent appraisers in accordance with Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP). Such fair value estimates involve subjective judgments of unrealized
gains and losses, and the actual market price of the real estate can only be determined by negotiation
between independent third parties in a sales transaction.

Alternative investments represent the Retirement System’s interest in limited partnerships. The fair
values of alternative investments are based on net asset values provided by the general partners.
Partnership financial statements are audited annually as of December 31 and net asset values are
adjusted monthly or quarterly for cash flows to/from the Retirement System, investment earnings and
changes in fair value. Such fair value estimates involve subjective judgments of unrealized gains and
losses, and the actual market price of the investments can only be determined by negotiation
between independent third parties in a sales transaction.

The Charter and Retirement Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments to enter
into securities lending transactions — loans of securities to broker-dealers and other entities for
collateral with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future.
The collateral may consist of cash or non-cash; non-cash collateral is generally U.S. treasuries or
other U.S. government obligations. The Retirement System’s securities custodian is the agent in
lending the Retirement System’s domestic securities for cash collateral of 102% and international
securities for cash collateral of 105%. Contracts with the lending agent require them to indemnify the
Retirement System if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and if the collateral were inadequate
to replace the securities lent) or fail to pay the Retirement System for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold
unless the borrower defaults.

All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the Retirement System or the borrower,
although the average term of the loans as of June 30, 2009 was 85 days. In lending domestic
securities, cash collateral is invested in the lending agent’s short-term investment pool, which had a
weighted average maturity as of June 30, 2009 of 38 days. In lending international securities, cash
collateral is invested in a separate short-term investment pool, which had a weighted average
maturity as of June 30, 2009 of 17 days. The term to maturity of the loaned securities is generally not
matched with the term to maturity of the investment of the said collateral. Cash collateral may also be
invested separately in term loans, in which case the maturity of the loaned securities matches the
term of the loan.

Cash collateral invested in the lending agent’s short-term investment pools is reported at fair value.
The lending agent’'s short-term investment pools have not been rated by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Payable to borrowers of securities in the statements of plan net assets
represents the cash collateral received from borrowers. Additionally, the costs of securities lending
transactions, such as borrower rebates and fees, are recorded as expenses in the statements of plan
net assets.
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The Charter and Retirement Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments to enter
into fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements, that is, a sale of securities with a simultaneous
agreement to repurchase similar securities in the future at a lower price that reflects a financing rate.
The fair value of the securities underlying fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements equals the
cash received. If the dealers default on their obligations to resell these securities to the Retirement
System at the agreed-upon buy back price, the Retirement System could suffer an economic loss if
the securities have to be purchased at a higher price (than the agreed-upon buy back price) in the
open market. The Retirement System opted out of this program in September 2008 and transferred
remaining funds to the Investment Cash Account or segregated account for cash management
activities. This credit exposure at June 30, 2009 was $0.

Other funds — Non-pooled investments are also generally carried at fair value. However, money
market investments (such as short term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper,
bankers’ acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations) that have a remaining maturity at
the time of purchase of one year or less and participating interest-earning investment contracts (such
as negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank investment
contracts) are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The fair value of non-pooled
investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of
investments in open-end mutual funds is determined based on the fund’s current share price.

Component Unit — San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (The Agency) — The Agency pools
deposits and investments, except for certain investments restricted for developers’ deposits and
pledged assets relating to specific projects. The Agency’s investments are stated at fair value. Fair
value has been obtained by using market quotes as of June 30, 2009. Money market investments
(such as short-term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations) that have a remaining maturity of less than
one year at the date of purchase and participating interest-earning investment contracts (such as
negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank investment
contracts) are valued at the amortized cost, which approximates fair value as of June 30, 2009.

Investment Income

Income from pooled investments is allocated at month-end to the individual funds or external
participants based on the fund or participant’'s average daily cash balance in relation to total pooled
investments. City management has determined that the investment income related to certain funds
should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest income is recorded in the
General Fund. On a generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, the income is reported in
the fund where the related investments reside. A transfer is then recorded to transfer an amount
equal to the interest earnings to the General Fund. This is the case for certain other governmental
funds, Internal Service, Investment Trust and Agency Funds.

It is the City’s policy to charge interest at month-end to those funds that have a negative average
daily cash balance. In certain instances, City management has determined that the interest expense
related to the fund should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest expense
is recorded in the General Fund. On a GAAP basis, the interest expense is recorded in the fund and
then a transfer from the General Fund for an amount equal to the interest expense is made to the
fund. This is the case for certain other funds, MTA, Laguna Honda Hospital, General Hospital Medical
Center, and the Internal Service Funds.

Income from non-pooled investments is recorded based on the specific investments held by the fund.
The interest income is recorded in the fund that earned the interest.

(e) Loans Receivable

The Mayor’'s Office of Housing (MOH) and the Mayor’'s Office of Community Development (MOCD)
administer several housing and small business subsidy programs and issues loans to qualified
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applicants. Management has determined through policy that many of these loans may be forgiven or
renegotiated and extended long into the future if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met. At
June 30, 2009, it was determined that $510.1 million of the $579.6 million loan portfolio is not
expected to be ultimately collected.

For the purposes of the fund financial statements, the governmental funds expenditures relating to
long-term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the
loans are recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to
a deferred credit account. For purposes of the government-wide financial statements, long-term loans
are not offset by deferred credit accounts.

(f) Inventory

Inventory recorded in the proprietary funds primarily consists of construction materials and
maintenance supplies, as well as pharmaceutical supplies maintained by the hospitals. Generally,
proprietary funds value inventory at cost or average cost and expense supply inventory as it is
consumed. This is referred to as the consumption method of inventory accounting. The governmental
fund types also use the purchase method to account for supply inventories, which are not material.
This method records items as expenditures when they are acquired.

(g) Redevelopment Agency Property Held for Resale

Property held for resale are both residential and commercial and are recorded as an asset at the
lower of estimated cost or estimated conveyance value. Estimated conveyance value is
management’s estimate of net realizable value of a property based on current intended use. Property
held for sale may, during the period it is held by the Agency, generate rental income, which is
recognized as it becomes due and is considered collectible.

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, facilities and improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in
the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $5 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as
expenditures of the General Fund and other governmental funds and as assets in the government-
wide financial statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the
same period. Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases is included in depreciation and
amortization. Facilities and improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and easements
of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Facilities and Improvements 15t0 175
Infrastructure 15to 70
Machinery and Equipment 2t0 75
Easements 20

Works of art, historical treasures and zoological animals held for public exhibition, education, or
research in furtherance of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items
are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved by the City. It is the City’s policy to
utilize proceeds from the sale of these items for the acquisition of other items for collection and
display.
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(i) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks depending on an employee’s length of
service, is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to six months, except for Local 21 members, who are all entitled
to accumulate all unused sick leave. Unused amounts accumulated prior to December 6, 1978 are
vested and payable upon termination of employment by retirement or disability caused by industrial
accident or death. Effective July 1, 2002, the City established a pilot “Wellness Incentive Program”
(the Program) to promote workforce attendance. The Program was initially negotiated as part of the
July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2004 labor contract between the City and forty-one labor organizations,
representing about 48% of the City's workforce. It is described in several Memorandums of
Understanding (MOUs) dated since July 1, 2001, between the City and the affected labor
organizations. Under the terms of these MOUs and the labor contracts, the Program is in effect from
July 1, 2002 and begins to sunset by June 30, 2010.

This Program provides:

Effective July 1, 2002, any full-time employee leaving the employment of the City upon service or
disability retirement may receive payment for a portion of sick leave earned but unused at the
time of separation. The amount of this payment shall be equal to 2.5% of sick leave balances
earned but unused at the time of separation times the number of whole years of continuous
employment times an employee’s salary rate, exclusive of premiums or supplements, at the time
of separation. Vested sick leave hours as described by Civil Service Commission rules, shall not
be included in this computation.

The City accrues for all salary-related items, including the Program, in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements for which they are liable to make a payment directly and
incrementally associated with payments made for compensated absences on termination. The City
includes its share of social security and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in the
accrual for vacation and sick leave pay.

() Bond Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts and Interest Accretion

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. San
Francisco International Airport's bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. The remaining
bond premiums, discounts, and issuance costs are calculated using the straight-line method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts as
other financing sources and uses, respectively, and bond issuance costs as debt service
expenditures. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Interest accreted on capital appreciation bonds is reported as accrued interest payable in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.
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(k) Fund Equity
Reservations of Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balances of the governmental funds indicate that portion of fund equity which is
not available for appropriation for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use.
Following is a brief description of the nature of certain reserves.

Reserve for rainy day — The City’'s Charter requires that the City set aside funds into a reserve
account in years in which revenue growth exceeds five percent compared to the year before. The City
will be able to spend those funds in years in which revenues decline or grow by less than two percent.

Reserve for assets not available for appropriation — Certain assets, primarily cash and investments
outside the City Treasury and deferred charges, do not represent expendable available financial
resources. Therefore, a portion of fund equity is reserved to offset the balance of these assets.

Reserve for debt service — The fund balance of the debt service funds is reserved for the payment of
debt service in the subsequent year.

Reserve for encumbrances — Encumbrances are recorded as reservations of fund balances because
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. In certain other governmental funds, this accounting
treatment results in a deficit unreserved fund balance. This deficiency is carried forward to the next
fiscal year where it is applied against estimated revenues in the year the commitments are expended.

Reserve for appropriation carryforward — At the end of the fiscal year, certain budgeted expenditures
are authorized to be carried over and expended in the ensuing year. A reserve of fund balance is
established in the amount of these budget authorizations.

Reserve for subsequent years’ budgets — A portion of fund balance is reserved for subsequent years’
budgets. This balance includes the reserve required by the City’'s Administrative Code for the budget
incentive program for the purpose of making additional funds available for items and services that will
improve the efficient operations of departments.

Restricted Net Assets

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net
assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted, and unrestricted.

= Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This category groups all capital assets,
including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

= Restricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets that have external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At
June 30, 2009, the government-wide statement of net assets reported restricted assets of $371.8
million in governmental activities and $415.2 million in business-type activities. For governmental
activities, $2.5 million is restricted by enabling legislation.

= Unrestricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

The City issued general obligation bonds for the purpose of rebuilding and improving Laguna Honda
Hospital. These capital assets are reported in the City’s business-type activities. However, the debt
service will be paid with governmental revenues and as such the general obligation bonds are
reported with unrestricted net assets in the City’s governmental activities. In accordance with GASB
implementation guidance, the City reclassified $299.3 million of total net assets to unrestricted net
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assets from net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt to reflect the primary government
as a whole perspective.

Designations of Fund Equity

Designations of fund balances (note 4) indicate that portion of fund balance that is not available for
appropriation based on management’s plans for future use of the funds. Following is a brief
description of the nature of the designation as of June 30, 2009.

Designation for litigation and contingencies — This designation represents management’s estimate of
anticipated legal settlements or contingencies to be paid in the subsequent fiscal year. At
June 30, 2009, $32.9 million was designated for litigation and contingencies which is included in the
unreserved General Fund balance.

Deficit Net Assets/Fund Balances

The Environmental Protection Fund and Senior Citizens’ Program Fund had deficits of $0.2 million
and $0.9 million, respectively, as of June 30, 2009. The deficits relate to increases of deferred tax,
grant and subvention revenues on various programs which are expected to be collected beyond 120
days of the end of fiscal year 2009.

The San Francisco County Transportation Authority Fund had a $23.3 million deficit as of
June 30, 2009. The deficit relates to the Authority’'s capital projects which are scheduled to be
implemented over the course of several fiscal periods and are funded with non-current revenues.

The Moscone Convention Center Fund had a $3.6 million deficit as of June 30, 2009. The deficit will
be covered as hotel tax revenues are realized.

The Central Shops Fund and Telecommunications and Information Internal Service Fund had deficits
in total net assets of $1.7 million and $0.3 million, respectively as of June 30, 2009 mainly due to the
other postemployment benefits liability accrued as per GASB Statement 45. The deficits are expected
to be reduced in future years through anticipated rate increases or reductions in the operating
expenses. The rates are reviewed and updated annually.

() Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are generally recorded as transfers in (out) except for certain types of transactions
that are described below.

= Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures of the
requesting fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund and a liability of
the requesting fund at the end of the fiscal year.

= Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.

(m) Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are
deferred and amortized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For
governmental activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to
June 30, 2000.
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(n) Pollution Remediation Obligations

Pollution remediation obligations are measured at their current value using a cost-accumulation
approach, based on the pollution remediation outlays expected to be incurred to settle those
obligations. Each obligation or obligating event is measured as the sum of probability-weighted
amounts in a range of possible estimated amounts. Some estimates of ranges of possible cash flows
may be limited to a few discrete scenarios or a single scenario, such as the amount specified in a
contract for pollution remediation services.

(o) Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows are presented for proprietary fund types. Cash and cash equivalents include
all unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with original purchase maturities of three
months or less. Pooled cash and investments in the City’'s Treasury represent monies in a cash
management pool and such accounts are similar in nature to demand deposits. The City determined
that certain cash equivalents reported in its Airport, MTA and Market Corporation enterprise funds
totaling $22 million for 2008 should have been classified as investments. As a result of this
determination, the Statement of Cash Flows reflects a decrease of $22 million in cash equivalents
from $1.35 billion to $1.33 billion for 2008.

(p) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(g) Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented as 2007-2008 Summarized Comparative Financial Information in the
basic financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the
presentation in the 2008-2009 basic financial statements.

(r) Effects of New Pronouncements

During fiscal year 2009, the City implemented the following accounting standards:

On July 1, 2008, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pollution Remediation Obligations, which identifies the circumstances under which a government is
required to report a liability related to pollution remediation. Pursuant to Paragraph 11 of GASB
Statement No. 49, a government should estimate its expected pollution remediation outlays using the
Expected Cash Flow Measurement technique as described in GASB Statement No. 49 for pollution
remediation if it knows a site is polluted and any of the following obligating events occurs:

e The government is compelled to take remediation action because pollution creates an imminent
endangerment to public health or welfare or the environment, leaving it little or no discretion to
avoid remediation action.

e The government is in violation of a pollution prevention-related permit or license, such as a
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act permit or similar permits under state law.

e The government is named, or evidence indicates that it will be named, by a regulator as a
responsible party or potentially responsible party for remediation, or as a government responsible
for sharing costs.

e The government is named, or evidence indicates that it will be named, in a lawsuit to compel the
government to participate in remediation.

e The government commences, or legally obligates itself to commence, cleanup activities or
monitoring or operation and maintenance of the remediation effort. If these activities are
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voluntarily commenced and none of the other obligating events have occurred relative to the
entire site, the amount recognized should be based on the portion of the remediation project that
the government has initiated and is legally required to complete.

GASB Statement No. 49 also requires governments to disclose information about their pollution
obligations associated with clean up efforts in the notes to the financial statements. For the year
ended June 30, 2009, the City recorded $1.8 million for soil remediation efforts and $31.7 million in
other pollution remediation costs as other liabilities in its governmental activities and business-type
activities, respectively. The disclosures required by GASB Statement No. 49 for the City’s business-
type activities are provided in Note 11.

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the
financial statements for the following GASB Statements:

In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets. This Statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope
provisions be classified as capital assets. Accordingly, existing authoritative guidance related to the
accounting and financial reporting for capital assets should be applied to these intangible assets, as
applicable. This Statement also provides authoritative guidance that specifically addresses the nature
of these intangible assets. Such guidance should be applied in addition to the existing authoritative
guidance for capital assets. Application of this statement is effective for the City’'s fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010.

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments. The Statement specifically requires governments to measure and report most derivative
instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The requirement of reporting the derivative
instruments at fair value on the face of financial statements gives the users of financial statements a
clearer look into the risks their governments are sometimes exposed to when they enter into these
transactions and how those risks are managed. The Statement also addresses hedge accounting
requirements and improves disclosures, providing a summary of the government's derivative
instrument activity, its objectives for entering into derivative instruments, and their significant terms
and risks. Application of this Statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions. The objective to this Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied
and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. This Statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government
is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental
funds. Application of this Statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

(s) Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside
for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because the use
of the proceeds is limited by applicable bond covenants and resolutions. Restricted assets account
for the principal and interest amounts accumulated to pay debt service, unspent bond proceeds, and
amounts restricted for future capital projects.

(t) Restatement of Net Assets

Net assets of the business-type activities and the Port Enterprise fund have been reduced by
$43.0 million. As allowed by GASB Statement No. 49, existing pollution remediation liabilities
associated with the Pier 70 project area (see Note 11) from prior periods in the amount of
$27.5 million is being recognized as a reduction of beginning net assets. In addition, Port
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management determined in 2009 that certain land improvements that had not been depreciated were
exhaustible assets and should have been depreciated in prior periods. Beginning net assets at June
30, 2008 have been restated by $15.5 million for the required accumulated deprecation and related
adjustments of such land improvements.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

Total fund balances of the City’'s governmental funds, $985,012, differs from net assets of
governmental activities, $1,305,203, reported in the statement of net assets. The difference primarily
results from the long-term economic focus in the statement of net assets versus the current financial
resources focus in the governmental funds balance sheets.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets

Governmental  Long-term Internal Reclassi- Statement of
Funds Assets, Service ficationsand  Net Assets
Total Liabilities ® Funds @ Eliminations Totals
Assets
Deposits and investments with City Treasury........... $ 967,957 $ - $ 16309 $ - $ 984,266
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury...... 209,021 - 96,050 - 305,071
Receivables, net:
Property taxes and penalties................ccceevvennnn. 73,715 - - - 73,715
Other local taXeS........cuvvivviiiiiiii e e, 218,348 - - - 218,348
Federal and state grants and subventions.. 220,738 - - - 220,738
Charges for ServiCes.........ocouvvviviiiniiinieene, 54,556 - 89 - 54,645
Interest and other..............cccoooviiiiii i 8,453 - 853 - 9,306
Due from other funds 28,561 - - (28,561) -
Due from/advances to component unit................... 11,738 - - - 11,738
Loans receivable, Net..........ccoeveviiiiiiiiiiieiieees 69,431 - - - 69,431
Capital aSSets, Net.........oovveviiiiiiiiee e, - 3,022,552 6,363 - 3,028,915
Deferred charges and other assets........................ 9,589 18,406 6,868 - 34,863
Total assets $1,872,107 $3,040958 $ 126,532 $ (28,561) $5,011,036
Liabilities
Accounts payable.............cociiiiiiiei $ 198319 $ - $ 8,963 $ - $ 207,282
Accrued payroll..........couueeeiiiin e 89,206 - 1,904 - 91,110
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay - 140,145 3,383 - 143,528
Accrued workers' compensation.............. - 211,854 1,027 - 212,881
Other postemployment benefits obligation............... - 330,937 7,885 - 338,822
Estimated claims payable............cccoooeevviiiiiinnnn. - 145,006 - - 145,006
Accrued interest payable.............ocoovviiiinneinieennn - 10,378 2,090 - 12,468
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues........... 147,990 (132,295) - - 15,695
Due to other funds/internal balances...................... 44,860 - 3,141 (28,561) 19,440
Deferred credits and other liabilities....................... 256,720 (129,562) 1,463 - 128,621
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables...... 150,000 1,946,943 294,037 - 2,390,980
Total liabilities..........cccocoviiii e, 887,095 2,523,406 323,893 (28,561) 3,705,833
Fund balances/net assets
Total fund balances/net assets...............ccccccevnnn. 985,012 517,552 (197,361) - 1,305,203
Total liabilities and fund balances/net assets........ $1,872,107 $3,040,958 $ 126532 $ (28,561) $5,011,036
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(1) When capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment) that are to

)

be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the costs of
those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the
statement of net assets includes those capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, among the assets of the City as a whole.

COSt Of CAPILAl ASSELS ..eieiiiiiiie it e e e eneee
Accumulated dePreCiation ...........ooueeii i

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid and are
capitalized and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes

Of the StAtEMENT Of NEBT ASSEES. .uuniiiit ettt et e et e e e e e e e ea e e e eataeeereraaas

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’'s governmental activities are not due
and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the statement
of net assets

Accrued vacation and SiCK 1€aVE PaY.........oouuiiiiiiiii e
Accrued WOrkers’ COMPENSALION .......cciiiiiiiiiiieiii et e e e
Other postemployment benefits obligation ...,
Estimated Claims Payable ...
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables...........ccccceeeeiiiiciiieeee e,
Deferred credits and other liabilitieS............ooiiiiiiiiieiie e

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is
recognized as expenditure when paid.

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some
assets will not be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets
(for example, receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental
funds and thus are not included in fund balance.

Deferred tax, grant and subvention reVENUES ............ccevvveeeiiiiiiiiiieee e cssieeeeeeens
Deferred credits and other liabilitieS ............covvvveeiiiic e

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance, printing and
mailing services, and telecommunications, to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of certain internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the statement of net assets.

Net deficit before adjuSIMENtS ...........cuviiiiii e

Adjustments for internal balances with San Francisco Finance Corporation:

Capital lease receivables from other governmental and enterprise funds............
Deferred charges and other asSetsS.........cccvveiiiieii i
Deferred credits and other liabilitieS .............oeeviieiiiiii e

In addition, intrafund receivables and payables among various internal service
funds of $0.3 million are eliminated.

56

$ 3,911,495

(888,943)
$ 3,022,552

..$ 18,406
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$(2.778.,532)

$ (10,378)

$ 132,295
133,209
$ 265,504

$ (1,444)

(293,291)
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94,739
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(b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of

activities

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds, $13,343, differs from the change in net
assets for governmental activities, ($279,853), reported in the statement of activities. The differences
arise primarily from the long-term economic focus in the statement of activities versus the current
financial resources focus in the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities

Governmental Long-term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement of
Funds Revenues/ related Service Debt Activities
Totals Expenses @ ltems Funds © Transactions © Totals
Revenues
PrOPEItY tAXES. .. .vveeee e iee et et e, $ 1,272,385 $ 29,686 - $ - $ - $ 1,302,071
Business taxes.... 388,653 - - - - 388,653
Sales and use tax 172,794 - - - 172,794
HOLEI TOOM tAX... .. vee e e e 214,460 - - - 214,460
Utility users tax.... ... 89,801 - - - 89,801
Other local taxes..................... 126,017 - - - - 126,017
Licenses, permits and franchises................ccccueeveeee 32,153 244 - - - 32,397
Fines, forfeitures and penalties..............c.ccocovveeeennine 9,694 - - - - 9,694
Interest and investment income.. e 33,547 330 - 1,557 - 35,434
Rents and CONCESSIONS.........vvvvrieeiiteeeiineeeiineeeiinns 73,225 1,042 - - - 74,267
Intergovernmental:
Federal........c.ovuiiiiiiiii 357,612 (2,150) - - 355,462
State..... 581,047 7,677 - - 588,724
Other.............. . 14,883 (44) - - - 14,839
Charges for SerVICeS..........uvviieiiiiiiiii i 284,196 450 - - - 284,646
Other FEVENUES.......cevveeeeiie e e eee e e 30,318 (107) - - - 30,211
Total rEVENUES.........oveeieiiii e 3,680,785 37,128 - 1,557 - 3,719,470
Expenditures/Expenses
Expenditures:
Public protection.............ccooveniiiiiiiiiie e 999,518 99,898 13,913 (4,018) - 1,109,311
Public works, transportation and commerce 248,161 20,997 (2,425) (11,778) - 254,955
Human welfare and neighborhood development....... 886,686 21,242 521 - - 908,449
Community health.... 578,828 28,939 966 - - 608,733
Culture and recreation.............. 313,442 15,445 25,603 (14,981) (19,515) 319,994
General administration and finance. 190,680 28,719 17,435 1,767 - 238,601
General City responsibilities................ccccceevieenn. 73,147 7 - (1,623) 1,033 72,634
Debt service:
Principal retirement................cooooiiiiiiiiii 126,501 - - (126,501) -
Interest and fiscal charges.. 74,466 - 8,974 9,947 93,387
Bond issuance costs....... 4,746 - - (4,746) -
Capital OULlAY........euvveeriiriieiie it 152,473 (152,473) - -
Total expenditures/expenses..........c.ccoevveereeeennn 3,648,648 215,317 (96,460) (21,659) (139,782) 3,606,064
Other financing sources (uses)/changes in
net assets
Net transfers (to) from other funds...........c..ccccccoeee. (393,485) - 226 - (393,259)
Issuance of bonds:
Face value of bonds issued............ccccoeevveeeeeennnnn. 456,935 - - (456,935)
Premium on issuance of bonds 12,875 - - (12,875)
Payment to escrow for refunded debt........................ (120,000) - - 120,000
Other financing sources - capital leases.................... 24,881 - (24,881) -
Total other financing sources (uses)/changes
INNELASSELS.....uuviiiiiiiiii i (18,794) - (24,655) (349,810) (393,259)
Net change for the year.............coooooo $ 13343 $ (178189) $ 96460 $ (1439 $ (210028) $ (279,853)
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Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the
City’s fiscal year ends, they are not considered as available revenues in the
governmental funds.

Some other revenues that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the governmental funds but are recognized in the
statement of activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Certain long-term liabilities reported in the prior year
statement of net assets were paid during the current period resulting in
expenditures in the governmental funds. This is the amount by which the
increase in long-term liabilities exceeded expenditures in funds that do not
require the use of current financial resources.

Some expenditures reported in the governmental funds pertain to the
establishment of deferred credits on long-term loans since the loans are not
considered "available" to pay current period expenditures. The deferred credits
are not reported in the statement of net assets and, therefore, the related
expenditures are not reported in the statement of activities.

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased
or constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of
financial resources expended, whereas net assets decrease by the amount of
depreciation expense charged for the year, the loss on disposal of capital assets
and capital asset acquired or funded by donation and other revenues.

Capital EXPENAITUIES ... .uviiiiiee e r e e e s s e e e e e e e s s aanreees
DEPIrECIAtION EXPENSE ...uviiiie e e i ittt e e e e e e s e st rr e e e e e s e s s e e e e e e e s s satbareeeeaaeeesannrnreees
Loss on disposal of capital @SSetS.........cvccuiviiiiiiee i

D111 1= oo = PP UUPTPRRR

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance, printing and
mailing services, and telecommunications, to individual funds. The adjustments
for internal service funds “close” those funds by charging additional amounts to
participating governmental activities to completely cover the internal service
funds’ costs for the year.

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (note 8) are reported as a
culture and recreation expenditure in the governmental funds and, thus, have the
effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been
used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce the
liability in the statement of net assets and do not result in an expense in the
statement of activities. The City’s capital lease obligation was reduced because
principal payments were made to lessee.

Total Property reNt PAYMENTS. ........cviiiiieieeiesieeteeiesteereesesee e eseesee e eeeseeeseesee e
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$ 29,686

7,442

$ 37,128

$ (215,629)

312

$ (215,317)

$ 179,419
(81,589)

(1,370)
$ 96,460

$ (1,439

$ 19515
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Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid, and are
capitalized and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes
of the statement of activities.

(270 Lo I ETS U =T (o1 I o0 1) £ TR
Amortization of DONd ISSUANCE COSTS......uuiiiiiiiiii e na s
(D11 (=1 (=] 0 (o1 T

Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the governmental funds when the
bonds are issued, and are capitalized in the statement of net assets. This is the

amount of premiums capitalized during the current period..............occccvvieeeeeeeeviccinnnee,

Repayment of bond principal and the payment to escrow for refunding of debt are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of
reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For
the City as a whole however, the principal payments and payment to escrow for
refunded debt reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not
result in expenses in the statement of activities. The City’'s bonded debt was
reduced because principal payments were made to bond holders and payments
were made to escrow for refunded debt.

Principal payments Made ..........uuuiiiiiiiiiii s
Payments to escrow for refunded debt...........cc.oooiii

Bond and loan proceeds and capital leases are reported as other financing

sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance.

In the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not affect the statement of
activities. Proceeds were received from:

General obligation DONAS.........o.eeiiiii e
Refunding general obligation bonds..............cooiiiiiiiii e

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in
governmental funds because (1) additional accrued and accreted interest was
calculated for bonds, notes payable and capital leases, (2) amortization of bond
discounts, premiums and refunding losses are not expended within the fund
statements, and (3) additional interest expense was recognized on the accrual of
an arbitrage rebate liability which will not be recognized in the governmental
funds until the liability is due and payable.

INCrease iN ACCIUEH INTEIEST ........iiei e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaaas
LOSS ON FEfUNAING ..vviiiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e eneees

Interest payment on capital lease obligations on the Moscone Convention

C BN e
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and refunding losses ..........ccccccco...
Increase in arbitrage rebate liability ..........cccceoiiiiiiiii e
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$ 126,501
120,000
246,501

(185,540)

(271,395)
(456,935)

$ (210,434)

$  (1,513)
(1,779)

(10,232)
2,756
821

$ (9,947)
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(4) BUDGETARY RESULTS RECONCILED TO RESULTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Budgetary Results Reconciliation

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The results of operations are presented in the
budget-to-actual comparison statement in accordance with the budgetary process (Budget basis) to
provide a meaningful comparison with the budget.

The major differences between the Budget basis “actual” and GAAP basis are timing differences.
Timing differences represent transactions that are accounted for in different periods for Budget basis
and GAAP basis reporting. Certain revenues accrued on a Budget basis have been deferred for
GAAP reporting. These primarily relate to the accounting for property tax revenues under the Teeter
Plan (note 6), revenues not meeting the 120 day availability period and other assets not available for
budgetary appropriation.

The fund balance of the General Fund as of June 30, 2009 on a budget basis is reconciled to the fund
balance on a GAAP basis as follows:

General Fund

Fund Balance — Budget Basis $ 390,512
Unrealized Losses on Investments (1,148)
Cumulative Excess Property Tax Revenues Recognized on a Budget Basis (56,426)
Cumulative Excess Health, Human Service, Franchise Tax and Other Revenues

Recognized on a Budget Basis (37,940)
Deferred amounts on loan receivables (4,630)
Reserved for Assets Not Available for Appropriation 11,307
Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 301,675

General Fund Budget basis fund balance at June 30, 2009 is composed of the following:

Reserved for Rainy Day - Economic Stabilization Reserve.................. $ 98,297
Reserved for ENCUMbBrances ..........ccccvevvvee i 65,902
Reserved for Appropriation Carryforward ...........cccccevviieeiiiiieeeeiiiieeene 91,075
Reserved for Subsequent Years’ Budgets:
Budget Savings Incentive Program - Recreation and Park............ 6,575
Salaries and benefits costs (MOU)........coovuieiiiiiiiininiee e 316
Total Reserved Fund BalanCe ...........cccccevveveieieicieececees $ 262,165
Designated for Litigation and ContingenCies ..........cccccceeereeerieeenieenne 32,900
Unreserved, Undesignated Fund Balance —
Available for APPropriation ...............ccceveeeeerererrisessereerereenseeseeens 95447
Total Unreserved AMOUNES ........cooiiieiieiiiiiiee e 128,347
Fund Balance, June 30, 2009 — Budget basis. ............ccccvvveeveeeeeiiinnns _$ 390,512

Of the $95.4 million unreserved, undesignated fund balance - available for appropriation,
$94.5 million has been subsequently appropriated as part of the General Fund budget for use in fiscal
year 2009-2010.
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(5) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

(a) Cash, Deposits and Investments Presentation

Total City cash, deposits and investments, at fair value, are as follows:

Component
Primary Government Units
Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds Total
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury ........cooeeevvvvveeninnnnn $ 984,266 $ 970,347 $ 727,137 $ 2,681,750 $ 2,821
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury ......oooeeevveveeeeenineeenn 209,021 8,041 12,057,992 12,275,054 207,059
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury ........occeeeevieeeneeinnns - 316,971 - 316,971
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury ......oooeeevvvivniiinnnneen. 96,050 358,617 - 454,667 108,668
Invested securities lending collateral .... - - 837,074 837,074 -
Total deposits and investments ........ $ 1,289,337 $ 1,653,976 $ 13,622,203 $ 16,565,516 $ 318,548
Cash and deposits ..........cc.cccevuunnnns $ 26,757 $ 29,555
Investments ............ccceeeeeiiinninnn 16,538,759 288,993
Total deposits and investments ........ $ 16,565,516 $ 318,548

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code, the City’'s
investment policy and the Retirement System’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the
following provision. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure
City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits. In addition, the City’s investment policy states that mortgage-backed collateral will not
be accepted. As of June 30, 2009, $0.2 million and $5.7 million of the business-type activities and the
Retirement System’s bank balances, respectively, were exposed to custodial credit risk by not being
insured or collateralized.

(b) Investment Policies

Treasurer’s Pool

The City’s investment policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the City will
deposit funds, types of investment instruments as permitted by the California Government Code, and
the percentage of the portfolio which may be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to
maturity. The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and yield. The City has
established a Treasury Oversight Committee (Oversight Committee) as defined in the City
Administrative Code section 10.80-3, comprised of various City officials and representatives of
agencies with large cash balances, to monitor and review the management of public funds
maintained in the investment pool in accordance with Sections 27130 to 27137 of the California
Government Code. The Treasurer prepares and submits a comprehensive investment report to the
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members of the Oversight Committee and the investment pool participants every month. The report
covers the type of investments in the pool, maturity dates, par value, actual cost, and fair value.

The California Government Code does not limit the amount of City funds that may be invested in
federal agency instruments. However, the City’s investment policy requires that investments in federal
agencies should not exceed 60 percent of the total portfolio at the time of purchase. The investment
policy also limits the maximum maturity of each type of agency instrument and does not permit the
investments in medium term corporate notes.

The City’s investment policy also limits the purchase of negotiable certificates of deposit to the five
largest domestic commercial banks that have demonstrated profitability in their most recent audited
financial statements at the time of purchase. In addition, the investment policy requires that public
time deposits be made only at approved financial institutions with at least one full service branch
within the geographical boundaries of the City, and that they yield a minimum of 0.125% higher than
equal maturity U.S. Treasury instruments except in special circumstances specifically authorized by
the Treasurer. The investment policy restricts exposure to the amount fully guaranteed by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation for each savings institution. The current guarantee limit is $250. The
investment policy also requires that commercial bank deposits be made on a competitive basis with
risk exposure based on financial statements and related information gathered on each individual
bank.

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the City, along with the related
interest rate and concentration of credit limits.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of  Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio in One Issuer
U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and bonds 5years None None
U.S. Agency Securities (all): 5years 60% * n/a
Federal National Mortgage Association 5years n/a 30% *
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 5years n/a 30% *
Federal Home Loan Bank 270 days * n/a 30% *
Federal Farm Credit Bank 270 days * n/a 30% *
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Association 270 days * n/a 10% *
Resolution Trust Funding Corporation 270 days * n/a 5% *
Tennessee Valley Authority 270 days * n/a 10% *
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10% *
Bankers Acceptances 180 days 40% 30% *
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program 5years 30% None
SFate and local government agencies 5 years 20% None
indebtedness
Repurchase Agreements 30 days * None $75 million
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 45 days * 20% $75 million
State of California Local Agency Investment
Fund n/a None None
Bank and Thrift:
Public Time Deposits 5years None None
Public Demand Accounts 5 years None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None

*  Represents restriction on which the City’s investment policy is more restrictive than the California
Government Code.
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The Treasurer also holds for safekeeping bequests, trust funds, and lease deposits for other City
departments. The bequests and trust funds consist of stocks and debentures. Those instruments are
valued at par, cost, or fair value at the time of donation.

Other Funds

Other funds consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance of
bonds and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These funds are invested either in
accordance with bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and specified
capital improvements or in accordance with grant agreements and may be restricted for the issuance
of loans.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Retirement System’s investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines as
established by the Retirement Board. The objective of the policy is to maximize the expected return of
the fund at an acceptable level of risk. The Retirement Board has established percentage guidelines
for types of investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified.

The investment policy permits investments in domestic and international debt and equity securities;
real estate; securities lending; and alternative investments, which include investments in a variety of
commingled partnership vehicles.

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

The investment policy of the Redevelopment Agency is governed by Article 2 of the California
Government Code. Investments are restricted to certain types of instruments and certain of these
instruments are only allowed within limits. The California Government Code permits reverse
repurchase agreements, but reverse repurchase agreements require the prior approval of the Agency
Commission. The Agency does not participate in reverse repurchase agreements or other high-risk
investments as defined by the Agency’s investment policy. It is the Agency’s intention to hold
investments until maturity, unless earlier liquidation would result in an investment gain.

Certain investments of the Agency are in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is
sponsored by the State Treasurer and prepares its market value report detailing the carrying cost and
the estimated fair value for the entire pool. The Agency has used a multiplier provided by LAIF to
determine estimated fair values. In addition, the Agency has investments with trustees. These
investments are restricted by various bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal,
interest and specified capital improvements.

(c) Investment Risks

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value is to changes in market interest rates. The following schedule indicates the interest rate risk of
the City’s investments as of June 30, 2009. The Employees’ Retirement System’s interest rate risk
information is discussed in section (e) of this note.

63



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Investment Maturities

Less than 1to5 5to More than
Fair Value 1 year years 10 years 10 years
Primary Government:
Investments in City Treasury:

U.S. Treasury Bills $ 294,190 $ 294190 $ - $ $ -

U.S. Treasury Notes 362,845 181,283 181,562 -

U.S. Agencies - Coupon 1,175,399 279,653 895,746 -

U.S. Agencies - Discount 194,544 194,544 - -

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program 554,562 - 554,562 -

Negotiable certificates of deposits 425,000 425,000 - -

Public time deposits 15,300 5,300 10,000 -

Less: Treasure Island Development Authority

Investments with City Treasury (2,821) (2,821) - -

Subtotal investments in City Treasury 3,019,019 $ 1,377,149 $ 1641870 $ $ -
Investments Outside City Treasury:
(Governmental and Business-Type)

U.S. Treasury Notes 6,142 $ 6,142 $ - 3 $ -

U.S. Treasury Bills 2,499 2,499 - -

U.S. Agencies - Coupon 32,250 18,375 13,875 -

U.S. Agencies - Discount 312,315 312,315 - -

Money market mutual funds 281,758 281,758 - -

Guaranteed investment contract 15,958 - 15,958 -

Commercial paper 732 732 - -

Certificate of deposits 923 923 - -
Subtotal investments outside City Treasury 652577 $ 622,744 $ 29,833 $ $ -

Employees' Retirement System investments 12,867,163
Total Primary Government 16,538,759
Component Units:
Redevelopment Agency:

U.S. Treasury Bills 61995 $ 61,995 $ - 3 $ -

U.S. Agencies - Coupon 2,009 2,009 - -

U.S. Agencies - Discount 29,999 29,999 - -

Commercial paper 19,987 19,987 - -

State Local Agency Investment Fund 16,718 16,718 - -

Money market mutual funds 149,161 149,161 - -

Guaranteed investment contracts 6,303 987 - 5,316
Subtotal Redevelopment Agency 286,172 $ 280,856 $ - $ $ 5316

Treasure Island Development Authority:

Investments with City Treasury 2821 % 2821 % - -
Subtotal Treasure Island Development Authority 2821 $ 2821 $ - -
Total Component Units 288,993
Total Investments $ 16,827,752
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One of the ways that the Treasurer manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so
that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to
provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. All security transactions including collateral
for repurchase agreements, entered into by the Treasurer are conducted on a deliver-versus-payment
basis pursuant to approved custodial safekeeping agreements. Securities are held by a third party
custodian designated by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Agency's
investment policy limits investments to securities with short maturities, such as the following:

= The maximum maturity of commercial paper is 180 days. Investment in commercial paper will
comprise not more than 25% of the Agency'’s portfolio.

= The maximum maturity of bankers’ acceptance is 180 days.

» The maximum maturity of corporate notes is five years. Investment in corporate notes may not
exceed 15% of the Agency'’s portfolio.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization.

Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code and the City’s
investment policy and the actual rating as of June 30, 2009 for each investment type in the City's
Treasury.

Standard Total
Minimum & Poor’s Investment

Investment Type Legal Rating Rating Portfolio
U.S. Treasury Bills N/A A-1 9.7%
U.S. Treasury Notes N/A AAA/A-1 12.0%
U.S. Agencies N/A AAA/A-1 45.3%
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program N/A AAA 18.4%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits N/A N/A 14.1%
Public Time Deposits N/A N/A 0.5%

As a means of limiting its exposure to credit risk, the Agency’s investment policy limits investments to
high-quality securities with an investment grade of A-1/P-1 or better for commercial paper and AAA
for money market mutual funds, as well as maintaining a portfolio diversified by type and issuer.

Total
Credit Investment
Investment Type Ratings Portfolio
Treasury Bills Exempt 21.7%
U.S. Agencies — Coupon AAA 0.7%
U.S. Agencies — Discount A-1/P-1 10.5%
Commercial paper A-1/P-1 7.0%
State Local Agency Investment Fund Not rated 5.8%
Money market mutual funds AAAM 52.1%
Guaranteed investment contracts Not Rated 2.2%
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Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment
policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk
for investments; however, it is the practice of the City Treasurer that all investments are insured,
registered or held by the Treasurer’s custodial agent in the City’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. U.S. Treasury and Agency
securities are not subject to single issuer limitation. As of June 30, 2009, the City Treasurer has
investments in U.S. Agencies that represent 5 percent or more of the total Pool in the following:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association Notes, and
Federal Home Loan Bank. These investments represent 13.4 percent, 14.9 percent, 11.7 percent,
respectively.

In addition, 84 percent of Airport’s investments with its trustees are held in Federal National Mortgage
Association and 16 percent in Federal Home Loan Bank securities. The Finance Corporation’s
investments with its trustee are held in securities of Federal Home Loan Bank for 29 percent and
Federal Farm Credit Bank for 6.4 percent. The Redevelopment Agency held investments with Federal
Home Loan Bank and GE Capital Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program for 17.8 percent and 11.1
percent, respectively.

(d) Treasurer’s Pool

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for the
Treasurer’s Pool as of June 30, 2009:

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets held in trust for all pool participants .......... $ 3,001,542
Equity of internal pool participants ................coeeeunnee. 2,436,161
Equity of external pool participants .......................... 565,381

Total @qUILY ..vvveei v $ 3,001,542

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Net assets at July 1, 2008 ............ccovvvveeveeiiiiinnnnnnn $ 3,157,781
Net change in investments by pool participants .......... (156,239)
Net assets at June 30, 2009 .............coevvvivinnnnn. $ 3,001,542
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The following provides a summary of key investment information for the Treasurer's Pool as of
June 30, 2009 (in thousands):

Carrying
Type of Investment Rates Maturities Par Value Value

U.S. government SECUrities ...................... 0.13% - 3.86% 07/23/09 - 05/31/11 $ 650,100 $ 657,035
Federal agencies ..........ccoeveviiiiviiiennns 0.11% - 3.60% 07/07/09 - 04/21/14 1,369,550 1,369,943
Negotiable certificates of deposits ............. 1.20% - 2.52%  09/02/09 - 04/14/10 425,000 425,000
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program ..... 0.77% - 2.13% 01/07/11 - 12/26/12 551,000 554,562
Public time deposits ...........ccoovvvvviiiiiine, 1.00% - 3.90% 07/16/09 - 12/20/10 15,300 15,300

$ 3,010,950 3,021,840
Carrying amount of deposits in TreSAUrer'S POOI ............viiuiiie i e e e (20,298)
Total cash and investments in TreSaUrer'S POOI ............iiuiiiie i e e e e e $ 3,001,542

(e) Retirement System Investments

The Retirement System’s investments as of June 30, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Fixed Income Investments:

Short-term investments $ 504,096
Debt securities:
U.S. Government and agencies 1,053,552
Other debt securities 2,662,681
Subtotal debt securities 3,716,233
Total fixed income investments 4,220,329
Equity securities:
Domestic 2,835,168
International 2,279,316
Total equity securities 5,114,484
Real estate holdings 1,181,932
Alternative investments 1,511,250
Foreign currency contracts, net 2,094
Investment in lending agent's short-term investment pool 837,074
Total Retirement System Investments $ 12,867,163

Interest Rate Risk

The Retirement System does not have a specific policy to manage interest rate risk, but requires
investment managers to diversify by issue, maturity, sector, coupon and geography. Investment
managers retained by the Retirement System follow specific investment guidelines and are evaluated
against specific market benchmarks that represent their investment style. Any exemption from
general guidelines requires approval from the Retirement Board.
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Below is a table depicting the segmented time distribution for fixed income investments based upon
the expected maturity (in years) as of June 30, 2009:

Less than 1
Investment Type Fair Value year 1-5 years 6-10 years 10+ years
Asset Backed Securities $ 155,664 $ 2 $ 72070 $ 14549 $ 69,043
Bank Loans 31,848 774 8,767 21,104 1,203
Collateralized Bonds 3,017 - - 470 2,547
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 482,725 892 64,534 130,896 286,403
Corporate Bonds 1,380,439 83,990 768,418 387,346 140,685
Corporate Convertible Bonds 159,112 3,599 74,444 11,743 69,326
Government Agencies 14,401 9,174 3,836 1,391
Government Bonds 409,885 320,627 52,709 36,549
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 655,933 152,746 34,030 469,157
Index Linked Government Bonds 9,320 - 1,909 7,411
Mortgages 132 - 132 -
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 26,743 901 12,316 13,526
Non-Government Backed Collateralized
Mortgage Obligations 157,258 900 - 3,188 153,170
Options and swaps (8,201) (2,535) (1,964) (2,851) (851)
Other Fixed Income 484,658 390,657 62,688 24,293 7,020
Short-term Bills and Notes 17,877 17,877
Short-term Investment Funds 233,870 233,870 - - -
Total $ 4214681 $ 730,026 $ 1,532,405 $ 695670 $ 1,256,580

As of June 30, 2009, two Argentina government bonds and four other fixed income funds amounting
to $0.2 and $5.5 million, respectively, are in default. The latter amount is awaiting the outcome of the
Lehman bankruptcy proceedings. These securities are excluded from the table above.

Credit Risk

Fixed income investment managers typically are limited within their portfolios to no more than 5%
exposure in any single security, with the exception of United States Treasury and government
agencies. The following table illustrates the Retirement System’s exposure to credit risk excluding
obligations of the U.S. government and those explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government of
$598.3 million as of June 30, 2009:

Fair Value as a

Credit Rating Fair Value Percentage of Total
AAA $ 754,702 20.8%
AA 143,653 4.0%
A 320,312 8.8%
BBB 428,870 11.8%
BB 186,482 5.1%
B 185,971 5.1%
CCC 107,140 3.0%
cC 13,104 0.4%
C 1,785 0.0%
D 8,167 0.2%
Not rated 1,471,872 40.8%
Total $ 3,622,058 100.0%

Investments are classified and rated using the lower of (1) Standard & Poor’s (S&P) rating or (2)
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) rating corresponding to the equivalent S&P rating. If only a
Moody'’s rating is available, the rating equivalent to S&P is used for the purpose of this disclosure.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Retirement System’s
investment in a single issuer. Guidelines for investment managers typically restrict a position to
become no more than 5% (at market) of the investment manager’'s portfolio. Securities issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. government or its agencies are exempt from this limit.

As of June 30, 2009, the Retirement System had no investments of a single issuer that equal or
exceed 5% of total Retirement System net assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

The Retirement System does not have a specific policy addressing custodial credit risk for
investments, but it is the practice of the Retirement System that all investments are insured,
registered, or held by the Retirement System or its agent in the Retirement System’s name. As of
June 30, 2009, $12.0 million of the Retirement System’s investments were exposed to custodial credit
risk because they were not insured or registered in the name of the Retirement System, and were
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Retirement System’s name. Cash
received as securities lending collateral is invested in a securities lending collateral investment pool
and is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of investments. As of June 30, 2009, the Retirement System was subjected to foreign currency
risk. To mitigate this risk, the Retirement System'’s investment policy allows international managers to
enter into foreign currency exchange contracts limited to hedging currency exposure existing in the
portfolio. The Retirement System’s exposure to foreign currency risk derives from its positions in
foreign currency denominated cash equity, fixed income, alternative investments, real estate, and
swap investments.
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The Retirement System’s net exposure to foreign currency risk as of June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Fixed Alternative Real

Currency Cash Equity Income Investments Estate Total

Australian dollar $ 501 $ 91,955 $ 8491 $ - $ - $ 100,947
Brazilian real - 27,807 2,684 - - 30,491
British pound sterling 345 301,598 - 836 - 302,779
Canadian dollar 211 65,378 1,991 - - 67,580
Colombian peso - - 658 - - 658
Czech koruna 468 10,918 - - - 11,386
Danish krone 99 17,717 - - - 17,816
Egyptian pound - 7,389 - - - 7,389
Euro 11,965 553,951 11,631 180,119 - 757,666
Hong Kong dollar 750 147,121 - - - 147,871
Hungarian forint - 6,132 - - - 6,132
Indonesian rupiah 12 3,719 - - - 3,731
Japanese yen 3,214 416,627 - - 63,994 483,835
Malaysian ringgit - 1,776 - - - 1,776
Mexican peso - 4,582 896 - - 5,478
New Israeli shekel - 2,833 - - - 2,833
New Taiwan dollar - 29,445 - - - 29,445
New Zealand dollar 28 1,621 - - - 1,649
Nigerian naira - - 2,801 - - 2,801
Norwegian krone 131 17,611 - - - 17,742
Polish zloty - 3,330 - - - 3,330
Russian ruble (new) 27 - 1,670 - - 1,697
Singapore dollar 280 39,228 - - - 39,508
South African rand 24 27,151 - - - 27,175
South Korean won 1,150 61,383 - - - 62,533
Swedish krona (27 37,695 - - - 37,668
Swiss franc 351 138,954 1,238 - - 140,543
Thai baht - 8,926 - - - 8,926
Turkish lira - 14,169 3,699 - - 17,868
United Arab dirham - - 5,164 - - 5,164
TOTAL $ 19529 $ 2,039,016 $ 40,923 $ 180,955 $ 63,994 $ 2,344,417

Investments in forward currency contract investments are commitments to purchase or sell stated
amounts of foreign currency. Changes in fair value of open contracts are immediately recognized as
gains or losses. The fair values of forward currency contracts are determined by quoted currency
prices from national exchanges. As of June 30, 2009, the fair value of open contracts is summarized
as follows:

Purchase contracts $ 1,752,959
Sales contracts (1,750,865)
Net fair value $ 2,094

The Retirement System utilized these contracts to hedge (or decrease) the currency risk of foreign
investments, to increase investment exposure in foreign currencies beyond the amounts reported as
international investment securities, or to settle trades. Additionally, contracts may be used to
effectively cancel previous contracts. The impact on market risk of these contracts can be
summarized as follows:

Contracts used to hedge or to settle trades, net $ (429,284)

Contracts used to increase investment exposure in a
foreign currency or to settle trades, net 431,378
Net fair value $ 2,094
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Securities Lending

The Retirement System lends U.S. government obligations, domestic and international bonds, and
equities to various brokers with a simultaneous agreement to return collateral for the same securities
plus a fee in the future. The securities lending agent manages the securities lending program and
receives securities and cash as collateral. Collateral cash is pledged at 102% and securities at 105%
of the fair value of domestic securities and international securities lent. There are no restrictions on
the amount of securities that can be lent at one time. The term to maturity of the loaned securities is
generally not matched with the term to maturity of the investment of the said collateral.

The Retirement System lent $1.0 billion in securities and received collateral of $0.88 billion and $0.17
billion in cash and securities, respectively, from borrowers. Due to the decline in the fair value of
assets held by the short-term investment pool, the Retirement System'’s invested cash collateral was
valued at $0.84 billion. The unrealized loss of $44.8 million is presented as part of the net
depreciation in fair value of investments in the statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. The
Retirement System is exposed to investment risk including the possible loss of principal value in the
short-term investment pool due to the fluctuation in the fair value of the assets held by the short-term
investment pool.

The Retirement System does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities unless a
borrower defaults. The securities collateral is not reported on the statement of fiduciary net assets. As
of June 30, 2009, the Retirement System has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the
amounts the Retirement System owes them exceed the amounts they owe the Retirement System.
As with other extensions of credit, the Retirement System may bear the risk of delay in recovery or of
rights in the collateral should the borrower of securities fail financially. In addition, the lending agent
indemnifies the Retirement System against all borrower defaults.

The Retirement System’s securities lending transactions as of June 30, 2009, are summarized in the
following table:

Fair Value of Fair Value of
Loaned Securities
Security Type Securities Cash Collateral Collateral
Securities Loaned for Cash Collateral:
International Equities $ 136,365 $ 144,864 $ -
International Corporate Fixed Income 1,242 1,284 -
International Government Fixed Income 11,478 12,001 -
U.S. Government Agencies 1,860 1,906 -
U.S. Corporate Fixed Income 97,479 100,108 -
U.S. Equities 312,137 320,923 -
U.S. Government Fixed Income 294,014 300,744 -
Securities Loaned with Non-Cash Collateral:
International Equities 167,406 - 167,586
International Government Fixed Income 75 - 67
U.S. Equities 393 - 386
Total $ 1,022,449 $ 881,830 $ 168,039

71



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

(6) PROPERTY TAXES

The City is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling state law. Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property. Liens for secured
property taxes attach on January 1% preceding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied. Secured
property taxes are levied on the first business day of September and are payable in two equal
installments: the first is due on November 1% and delinquent with penalties after December 10"™; the
second is due February 1* and delinquent with penalties after April 10"™. Secured property taxes that
are delinquent and unpaid as of June 30" are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest
when paid. If not paid at the end of five years, the property may be sold at public auction and the
proceeds used to pay delinquent amounts due. Any excess is remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer.
Unsecured personal property taxes do not represent a lien on real property. Those taxes are levied
on January 1% and become delinquent with penalties after August 31>. Supplemental property tax
assessments associated with changes in the assessed valuation due to transfer of ownership in
property or upon completion of new construction are levied in two equal installments and have
variable due dates based on the date the bill is mailed.

Since the passage of California’s Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-1979, general
property taxes are based either on a flat 1% rate applied to the adjusted 1975-1976 value of the
property or on 1% of the sales price of the property on sales transactions or construction value added
after the 1975-1976 valuation. Taxable values on properties (exclusive of increases related to sales
and construction) can rise or be adjusted at the lesser of 2% per year or inflation.

The Proposition 13 limitations on general property taxes do not limit taxes levied to pay the interest
and redemption charges on any indebtedness approved by the voters prior to June 6, 1978 (the date
of passage of Proposition 13). Proposition 13 was amended in 1986 to allow property taxes in excess
of the 1% tax rate limit to fund general obligation bond debt service when such bonds are approved
by two-thirds of the local voters. In 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39 which set the
approval threshold at 55% for school facilities-related bonds. These “override” taxes for debt service
amounted to approximately $158 million for the year ended June 30, 2009.

Taxable valuation for the year ended June 30, 2009 (net of non-reimbursable exemptions,
reimbursable exemptions, and tax increment allocations to the Redevelopment Agency) was
approximately $140 billion, an increase of 13.0%. The secured tax rate was $1.163 per $100 of
assessed valuation. After adjusting for a State mandated property tax shift to schools, the tax rate is
comprised of: $0.65 for general government, $0.35 for other taxing entities including the San
Francisco Unified School District, San Francisco Community College District, the Bay Area Air Quality
Management District and the Bay Area Rapid Transit District, and also $0.163 for bond debt service.
Delinquencies in the current year on secured taxes and unsecured taxes amounted to 3.11% and
3.80%, respectively, of the current year tax levy, for an average delinquency rate of 3.16% of the
current year tax levy.

As established by the Teeter Plan, the Controller allocates to the City and other agencies 100% of the
secured property taxes billed but not yet collected by the City; in return, as the delinquent property
taxes and associated penalties and interest are collected, the City retains such tax amounts in the
Agency Fund. To the extent the Agency Fund balances are higher than required, transfers may be
made to benefit the City’s General Fund on a budgetary basis. The balance of the tax loss reserve as
of June 30, 2009 was $16.2 million, which is included in the Agency Fund for reporting purposes. The
City has funded payment of accrued and current delinquencies, together with the required reserve,
from interfund borrowing.
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(7) CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Capital asset activity of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases™ Decreases® 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. ..o $ 151,917 $ 3595 $ -8 155,512
CoNStruction in ProgressS.........c.c.vevvvneveeevninnnn. 248,587 164,572 (226,026) 187,133
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 400,504 168,167 (226,026) 342,645
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............ccceeveeenns 2,759,693 205,873 (5,598) 2,959,968
Machinery and equipment.............cccovevinenn. 315,598 16,899 (8,599) 323,898
Infrastructure...........cooooviiiiiii i 310,556 17,242 - 327,798
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 3,385,847 240,014 (14,197) 3,611,664
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eeee e 571,150 55,610 (4,270) 622,490
Machinery and equipment.............ccccoeeiiieine e, 254,897 18,910 (8,557) 265,250
Infrastructure..........coooovi i 29,227 8,427 - 37,654
Total accumulated depreciation................... 855,274 82,947 (12,827) 925,394
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 2,530,573 157,067 (1,370) 2,686,270

Governmental activities capital assets, net..... $ 2,931,077 $ 325,234 $ (227,396) $ 3,028,915

* The increases and decreases include transfers of categories of capital assets from construction in progress to
depreciable categories.
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Business-type Activities:

Capital asset activity of the business enterprises for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:
San Francisco International Airport

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land.. ..o $ 2,787 - 8 - $ 2,787
CONStruction in ProgreSS.......ccovveeviueineveeeniennn 55,150 146,639 (91,889) 109,900
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 57,937 146,639 (91,889) 112,687
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eee e 5,037,915 72,677 (22,528) 5,088,064
Machinery and equipment.............ccccoveiine e, 66,835 16,620 (4,294) 79,161
EasSements.........ccvviieiieii i 139,367 250 - 139,617
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 5,244,117 89,547 (26,822) 5,306,842
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............ccoeevieeen. 1,572,935 148,770 (20,260) 1,701,445
Machinery and equipment..............ccccoveviiine e, 54,568 2,492 (4,274) 52,786
Easements..........cooooiii i 73,919 6,954 - 80,873
Total accumulated depreciation................... 1,701,422 158,216 (24,534) 1,835,104
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............. 3,542,695 (68,669) (2,288) 3,471,738
Capital assets, Net.............ccoevvvrviniininninnns $ 3,600,632 77970 $ (94,177) $ 3,584,425
San Francisco Water Enterprise
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land.. ..o $ 17,886 500 $ -0 $ 18,386
COoNStruction in ProgressS.........ocvvevveineieeeenennn. 423,063 282,705 (158,475) 547,293
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 440,949 283,205 (158,475) 565,679
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.ovee e 1,287,404 138,776 - 1,426,180
Machinery and equipment.............ccoveiine e, 128,758 18,821 (791) 146,788
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 1,416,162 157,597 (791) 1,572,968
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.ceee e 496,886 41,085 (51) 537,920
Machinery and equipment..............ccccovvvinnene. 92,231 8,015 (779) 99,467
Total accumulated depreciation................... 589,117 49,100 (830) 637,387
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............. 827,045 108,497 39 935,581
Capital assets, Net.........cooveviiiiiiiieinee, $ 1,267,994 391,702 % (158,436) $ 1,501,260
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Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. ..o $ 4594 % 82 $ - $ 4,676
COoNStruction in ProgressS........cc.vevvvneverieniennn. 24,517 23,642 (9,194) 38,965
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 29,111 23,724 (9,194) 43,641
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eeenee. 484,567 4,775 - 489,342
Machinery and equipment.............ccoooveiiine e, 48,501 6,830 (169) 55,162
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 533,068 11,605 (169) 544,504
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eeee e 270,951 9,915 - 280,866
Machinery and equipment.............ccooveiiine e, 31,852 1,954 (166) 33,640
Total accumulated depreciation................... 302,803 11,869 (166) 314,506
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 230,265 (264) (3) 229,998
Capital assets, Net.......ccuvvveieeieiiiiiiieeeeens $ 259,376 $ 23,460 $ (9,197) $ 273,639

Municipal Transportation Agency

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. ..o $ 26,245 % - 8 -8 26,245
ConStruction in Progress..........cvevvieeeeeenenninnnn. 263,631 68,168 (221,236) 110,563
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 289,876 68,168 (221,236) 136,808
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements................cc.coeeeeeee 415,834 178,176 - 594,010
Machinery and equipment................coccoeiinnee. 1,140,301 37,176 (759) 1,176,718
Infrastructure.............cocooi i 1,101,857 5,898 - 1,107,755
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 2,657,992 221,250 (759) 2,878,483
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............coooeeveeeen 179,847 7,660 - 187,507
Machinery and equipment................ccooeiinnnne. 466,352 64,518 (731) 530,139
Infrastructure..........cooei i 307,677 32,308 - 339,985
Total accumulated depreciation................... 953,876 104,486 (731) 1,057,631
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 1,704,116 116,764 (28) 1,820,852
Capital assets, Net............ccoeeveiiiinininnnnn $ 1,993992 $ 184,932 $ (221,264) $ 1,957,660

75



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land.....covviiiiei i $ 542  $ - % - $ 542
CoNStruction in ProgressS.........ccvvevvvineierieninnnn. 21,670 18,680 (27,241) 13,109
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 22,212 18,680 (27,241) 13,651
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eeee e 135,231 853 - 136,084
Machinery and equipment.............ccccoveiiine e, 56,830 1,123 - 57,953
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 192,061 1,976 - 194,037
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............cccce v 98,953 4,787 - 103,740
Machinery and equipment..............ccccovviinene. 47,947 2,126 - 50,073
Total accumulated depreciation................... 146,900 6,913 - 153,813
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 45,161 (4,937) - 40,224
Capital assets, Net.........cooveiiiiiiiiieinee, $ 67,373 $ 13,743  $ (27,241) $ 53,875
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. ... $ 21,787 $ - % -0 8 21,787
Construction in ProgresSs.........vvevevvevineveeevninnnn. 62,975 73,538 (59,183) 77,330
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 84,762 73,538 (59,183) 99,117
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............ccoeeveein. 2,057,625 51,757 - 2,109,382
Machinery and equipment.............cccoveiiine e, 51,583 6,765 (335) 58,013
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 2,109,208 58,522 (335) 2,167,395
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.................ccccocuvne. 807,038 36,368 - 843,406
Machinery and equipment.............ccocoveiiine e, 26,071 2,447 (335) 28,183
Total accumulated depreciation................... 833,109 38,815 (335) 871,589
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 1,276,099 19,707 - 1,295,806
Capital assets, Net.......ccvvvveeerieeiiiiiieeeeeens $ 1,360,861 $ 93,245 $ (59,183) $ 1,394,923
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Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Total capital assets, not being depreciated....

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............
Machinery and equipment..................
Infrastructure............coooveiviiiiiinnnnns
Easements and other intangible assets

Total capital assets, being deprecial

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............
Machinery and equipment..................
Infrastructure...............cooiviiiiiinnnns
Easements and other intangible assets

Total accumulated depreciation.....

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net......................

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Total capital assets, not being depreciated....

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............
Machinery and equipment..................
Property held under lease..................

Total capital assets, being depreciated.........

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............
Machinery and equipment..................
Property held under lease..................

Total accumulated depreciation.....

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net..........c.ccceenees

June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Port of San Francisco

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 June 30,
(as restated) Increases Decreases 2009
.............. $ 104,345 % 1,237 % - $ 105,582
6,911 (33,484) 6,157
137,075 8,148 (33,484) 111,739
............. 320,632 4,304 - 324,936
............. 16,527 861 (887) 16,501
............... 1,069 26,843 (1,928) 25,984
.............. 5,480 3,369 - 8,849
ted......... 343,708 35,377 (2,815) 376,270
............. 204,173 8,906 - 213,079
............. 11,027 1,249 (887) 11,389
............... 571 1,245 (1,928) (112)
.............. 2,951 1,948 - 4,899
.............. 218,722 13,348 (2,815) 229,255
.............. 124,986 22,029 - 147,015
.............. $ 262,061 $ 30,177  $ (33,484) $ 258,754
Laguna Honda Hospital
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009

.............. $ 914 % -8 -0 8 914
310,534 113,967 - 424,501
311,448 113,967 - 425,415
............. 28,128 - (6,168) 21,960
............. 14,204 101 (481) 13,824
............. 2,931 - (41) 2,890
45,263 101 (6,690) 38,674
............. 24,945 616 (6,154) 19,407
............. 12,744 343 (481) 12,606
............. 467 205 - 672
.............. 38,156 1,164 (6,635) 32,685
.............. 7,107 (1,063) (55) 5,989
.............. $ 318,555 $ 112,904 $ (55) $ 431,404
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Other Fund — San Francisco Market Corporation

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
COoNStruction in Progress........oeveeeevevvreeeieeninns $ 3 % 871 $ - $ 874
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 3 871 - 874
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements................cc.eeune e 9,872 85 (327) 9,630
Machinery and equipment.............ccccoeeiee e, 56 33 - 89
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 9,928 118 (327) 9,719
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............ccccevieeins 5,347 254 - 5,601
Machinery and equipment.............cccooveiine e, 31 7 - 38
Total accumulated depreciation................... 5,378 261 - 5,639
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 4,550 (143) (327) 4,080
Capital assets, Net.........cooveiiiiiiiiieinen, $ 4553 % 728 % (327) $ 4,954
Total Business-type Activities
Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 June 30,
(as restated) Increases*® Decreases® 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land......ieeiie e $ 179,100 $ 1819 $ - 0% 180,919
CoNnstruction in ProgresS.......ovvvvviieeieveeinneenen 1,194,273 735,121 (600,702) 1,328,692
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 1,373,373 736,940 (600,702) 1,509,611
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.eeee e 9,777,208 451,403 (29,023) 10,199,588
Machinery and equipment.............cccoveiiine e, 1,523,595 88,330 (7,716) 1,604,209
INfrastrUCTUNe. ......oivve it e 1,102,926 32,741 (1,928) 1,133,739
Property held under lease..............c.c.ooeveiinin. 2,931 - (41) 2,890
Easements and other intangible assets.............. 144,847 3,619 - 148,466
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 12,551,507 576,093 (38,708) 13,088,892
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.ceee e 3,661,075 258,361 (26,465) 3,892,971
Machinery and equipment.....................ceeenns 742,823 83,151 (7,653) 818,321
INfrastrUCTUNe. ... oivee it 308,248 33,553 (1,928) 339,873
Property held under lease.............c...c.oocveviinn. 467 205 - 672
Easements and other intangible assets.............. 76,870 8,902 - 85,772
Total accumulated depreciation................... 4,789,483 384,172 (36,046) 5,137,609
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 7,762,024 191,921 (2,662) 7,951,283
Capital assets, Net..........coevveriiriiiiinieennnnne $ 9135397 $ 928,861 $ (603,364) $ 9,460,894

* The increases and decreases include transfers of categories of capital assets from construction in progress to

depreciable categories.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

PUBIIC ProteCHION. .. ..eeiiiiiiiie e $ 14,551
Public works transportation and COMMErce ...........occcvvevveeeeeeveccevnnnnnn, 12127
Human welfare and neighborhood development...........ccccccceevvvivvnnnnn. Al
Community Health ........uueeiiiii e 1174
Culture and reCreation ...........ooiuveee it 34,574
General administration and fiNANCE..........cccccevviiei e 18,623
Capital assets held by the City’s internal service funds
charged to the various functions on a prorated basis...................... 1,357
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities................... $ 82,947
Business-type activities:
AATDOME ©.e ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e et s e en e eer e e $ 158216
WALET ...ttt es et e st et et e s ea et ese s etetese s seetene s eeetene s seans 49,100
POWET ...ttt ettt et et et se et e et e teete st e te st et e s eneeneanas 11,869
TraNSPOITALION ....c.vvieiieieciee e e e e e e sareeeans 104,486
HOSPITAUS ..o 8,077
SEBWEL ... 38,815
POIt e 13,348
= 14 ] RPN 261
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities................... $ 384,172

Equipment is generally estimated to have useful lives of 2 to 40 years, except for certain equipment of
the Water Enterprise that has an estimated useful life of up to 75 years. Facilities and improvements
are generally estimated to have useful lives from 15 to 50 years, except for utility type assets of the
Water Enterprise, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), the Wastewater Enterprise, the
Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA), and the Port of San Francisco (Port) that have estimated
useful lives from 51 to 175 years. These long-lived assets include reservoirs, aqueducts, pumping
stations of Hetch Hetchy, Cable Car Barn facilities and structures of MTA, and pier substructures of
the Port, which totaled $1.7 billion as of June 30, 2009. In addition, the Water Enterprise had utility
type assets with useful lives over 100 years, which totaled $4.5 million as of June 30, 2009.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City’s enterprise funds incurred total interest expense
and interest income of approximately $281.1 million and $49.7 million, respectively. Of these
amounts, interest expense of approximately $28.0 million was capitalized, while no interest income
was received as part of the cost of constructing proprietary capital assets.

The Water Enterprise and the Wastewater Enterprise expensed $5.2 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, related to capitalized design and planning costs on certain projects that were
discontinued. The amounts of the write-off were recognized as other operating expenses in the
accompanying financial statements.

The General Hospital transferred approximately $27.0 million in construction in progress to
governmental activities and reimbursed the General Fund for the subsidies provided in prior years,
which were used to fund the initial phases of the new hospital rebuild project. During the fiscal year,
the City issued the first in a series of general obligation bonds of $131.7 million 2008 San Francisco
General Hospital Improvement Bonds (see Note 8.) The general obligation bonds will be funded by
governmental activities. The governmental activities will report the construction of the new hospital
and the related general obligation bonds during the construction phase.
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Port management determined in fiscal year 2009 that certain land improvements that had not been
depreciated were exhaustible assets and should have been depreciated in prior periods. In
connection with the restatement adjustment discussed in Note 2(t), accumulated depreciation as of
July 1, 2008 has been increased by $12.3 million and improvements of $3.2 million have been written
off.

Component Unit —Redevelopment Agency
Capital asset activity of the Redevelopment Agency for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2008 Increases Decreases 2009
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land......ooviiiiie $ 117,325 $ 20,644 $ -0 $ 137,969
CoNStruction in ProgreSS.......ccocvvevveineveeeeniennn. 14,924 8,580 - 23,504
Total capital assets, not being depreciated.... 132,249 29,224 - 161,473
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccceeeee e 176,655 848 - 177,503
Machinery and equipment.............cccooveiine e, 8,103 17 - 8,120
Leasehold improvements.............cocoeveeiininnn . 22,202 - - 22,202
Total capital assets, being depreciated......... 206,960 865 - 207,825
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............c..ccc.evee e 48,809 4,427 - 53,236
Machinery and equipment.................coeeveiannne. 7,852 56 - 7,908
Leasehold improvements.............cocoveveneecinann. 9,106 444 - 9,550
Total accumulated depreciation................... 65,767 4,927 - 70,694
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.............. 141,193 (4,062) - 137,131
Capital assets, Net...........covvvvvnieniunirniinennins $ 273,442 % 25,162 $ - $ 298,604

BONDS, LOANS, CAPITAL LEASES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Changes in Short-Term Obligations
The changes in short-term obligations for governmental and enterprise activities for the year ended
June 30, 2009, are as follows:

July 1, Additional Current June 30,
Type of Obligation 2008 Obligation Maturities 2009
Governmental activities:
Commercial PAPET..........ueer e eereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ (150,000) $ 150,000
Government activities short-term obligations........ $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ (150,000) $ 150,000
Business-type activities:
Commercial paper
San Francisco International Airport..................... $ 18000 $ 95165 $ (6,885) $ 106,280
San Francisco Water Enterprise..............ccccovuv.... - 890,500 (660,900) 229,600
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise................. 50,000 227,500 (177,500) 100,000

Business-type activities short-term obligations...... $ 68,000 $1,213165 $ (845,285) $ 435,880
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San Francisco County Transportation Authority

In March 2004, the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (the Authority) issued an initial
tranche of $50 million and in September 2004 the Authority issued the second tranche of $100 million
of a programmed $200 million aggregate principal amount of commercial paper notes (Limited Tax
Bonds), Series A and B. The commercial paper notes are issued to provide a source of financing for
the Authority’s voter approved Proposition K Expenditure Plan. Under this program, the Authority is
able to issue commercial paper notes at prevailing interest rates not to exceed 12% per annum. The
maximum maturity of the notes is 270 days. The principal amount of the commercial paper notes plus
interest thereon is backed as to credit and liquidity by an irrevocable line of credit (LOC) issued by
Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg, New York Branch in the amount up to $217.8 million. On
July 12, 2005, the expiration date of the irrevocable LOC was extended from April 14, 2007 to
December 29, 2015 through Authority Board Resolution 06-01. The commercial paper notes are
secured by a first lien gross pledge of the Authority’s Sales Tax. The principal and interest on the
commercial paper notes is payable at each maturity.

As of June 30, 2009, $150 million in commercial paper notes was outstanding and maturing within
1 to 120 days after year-end with interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 0.55%.

San Francisco International Airport

On May 20, 1997, the Airport authorized the issuance of its subordinate commercial paper notes (CP)
in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the lesser of $400 million or the stated amount of the
letter of credit. On May 9, 2006, the Airport obtained a letter of credit issued by State Street Bank and
Trust Company, with a maximum principal amount of $200 million.

As of June 30, 2009, the outstanding principal amount of CP was $106.3 million. The proceeds of the
notes will be used by the Airport to pay capital costs, costs of CP issuance and other incidental costs,
certain extraordinary expenditures for which Airport funds are not otherwise available and principal
and interest on maturing CP. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, interest rates on the taxable
CP was 0.90%; interest rate on tax exempt, private activity (AMT), CP ranged from 0.35% to 0.55%
and the interest rates on the tax-exempt governmental purpose CP (nhon-AMT) ranged from 0.25% to
0.40%.

San Francisco Water Enterprise

The Commission and Board of Supervisors have authorized the issuance of up to $500 million in
commercial paper. Pursuant to the voter-approved 2002 Proposition A, the Water Enterprise is
authorized to issue up to $1,628 million of indebtedness, of which, $507.8 million in long-term bonds
were previously issued in fiscal year 2006 and $890.5 million in short-term commercial paper were
issued during fiscal year 2009 and $660.9 million was repaid. Short-term commercial paper had an
average yield of 1.4% and maximum yield at 2.9% during fiscal year 2009.

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and Board of Supervisors have authorized the
issuance of up to $150 million in commercial paper under the voter-approved 2002 Proposition E for
the purpose of reconstructing, expanding, repairing or improving the Wastewater Enterprise’s
facilities. The commercial paper program is supported by a letter of credit issued by BNP Paribas and
is dated as of February 2007 with the U.S. Bank Trust N.A., as agent bank. As of June 30, 2009, the
Wastewater Enterprise had $100 million in commercial paper notes outstanding with interest rates
ranging from 0.30% to 2.2%. The letter of credit will expire on February 13, 2012.
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Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2009:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Final
Maturity Remaining
Type of Obligation and Purpose Date Interest Rate Amount
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Affordable housing ...........ccooiiiiic i 2014 4.10% - 6.75% $ 6,280
California Academy of SCIENCES ......oovvvvviviiiiieie e, 2025 3.125% - 5.25% 74,700
Laguna Honda Hospital .............ccoccoviiiiiiiiii s 2030 3.25% - 5.00% 162,685
Branch libraries ..o 2028 3.00% - 5.00% 76,900
Parks and playgrounds .............ccoccoviiiiiiiiii e 2028 3.00% - 5.25% 116,845
SChOOIS .ot e 2023 3.00% - 5.00% 22,535
San Francisco General Hospital ................ccoveeee e, 2029 4.00% - 5.25% 131,650
Seismic safety loan program ..........ccoooeeviiiiiiiiiniinnenins 2028 4.35% - 5.83% 10,296
Steinhart AQUANUM ..o e, 2025 3.125% - 5.00% 25,075
Z00 faCilities .......ccvvvieiiiiii e 2025 3.00% - 5.00% 10,935
REfUNAING ...vvviie e 2030 2.85% - 5.00% 527,240
General Obligation Bonds - governmental activities ...... 1,165,141
LEASE REVENUE BONDS:
San Francisco Finance Corporation ® ®@&® ... 2034 2.75% - 5.875% * 294,310
Lease Revenue Bonds - governmental activities .......... 294,310
OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:
Certificates of participation @@ ... 2041 1.95% - 5.30% 565,205
Loans @ @O ) 2025 2.00% - 7.498% 11,329
Capital leases payable OBD e, 2025 2.90% - 7.05% 164,383
Settlement Obligation Bonds @ ................cocooviiiiiis 2011 2.75% - 3.05% 13,890
Accrued vacation and sick leave @40 143,528
Accrued workers' compensation @D&D e, 212,881
Estimated claims payable @@ . ... 145,006
Other postemployment benefits obligation ..................... 338,822
Other long-term obligations - governmental activities .... 1,595,044
DEFERRED AMOUNTS:
Bond issuance premiums ...........ccoevvveieeeiieeiiniineneeee s 47,587
Bond issuance diSCOUNtS ...........ccoveuvivrieeiieiiniieineen s (4,034)
Bond refunding ..........ooooiiiiii (16,831)
Deferred amounts ...........cocoeeiii i 26,722
Governmental activities total long-term obligations ..... $ 3,081,217

Debt service payments are made from the following sources:
(@) Property tax recorded in the Debt Service Fund.

(b) Lease revenues from participating departments in the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.

(c) Revenues recorded in the Special Revenue Funds.

(d) Revenues recorded in the General Fund.

(e) Hotel taxes and other revenues recorded in the General and Special Revenue Funds.
(f)  User-charge reimbursements from the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.

Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for the Internal Service Funds

are included in the above amounts.

* Includes the Moscone Center West Expansion Project Refunding Bonds Series 2008-1 & 2, which refunded Moscone
Center West Expansion Project Series 2000-1, 2 & 3, both of which were financed with variable rate bonds that reset
weekly. The average interest rate from refunding date of September 11, 2008 through June 30, 2009 was 0.95% for

Series 2008-1 and 0.98% for Series 2008-2. The rate at June 30, 2009 for both series was 0.25%.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Final
Maturity Remaining
Entity and Type of Obligation Date Interest Rate Amount
San Francisco International Airport:

Revenue bonds ........coccoeviiiiiiii 2032 3.00% - 6.50% * $ 3,563,705

REVENUE NOES ....eeeiiii i e 2029 3.00% - 6.75% 314,925
San Francisco Water Enterprise:

Revenue bonds ........cc.vviiiiiiii e 2036 2.50% - 5.00% 921,390

Capital appreciation bonds .............cooovieveiiininenn, 2019 7.00% 3,620
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power:

Energy bonds ** ... 2023 5,903
Municipal Transportation Agency:

Parking and Traffic

Revenue bonds .........ccooeiiiiiii 2020 4.35% - 5.00% 15,880
Lease revenue bonds ...........ccoovviiiiiiiiii e 2022 4.70% - 5.50% 6,165
Notes, loans and other payables *** ........................ 2010 3.00% - 5.25% 2,482

Downtown Parking - parking revenue refunding bonds .. 2018 3.00% - 5.75% 8,570

Ellis-O'Farrell - parking revenue refunding bonds ......... 2017 3.50% - 4.70% 3,820

Uptown Parking - revenue bonds .. 2031 4.50% - 6.00% 17,090
San Francisco General Hospital Medlcal Center

Capital [8aSES .....c.veveie i 2013 2.75% - 4.00% 2,522
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise:

Revenue bonds ..........cooiiiiiiiii i 2025 3.00% - 5.25% 292,660

State of California - revolving funds loans ................... 2021 2.80% - 3.50% 75,339
Port of San Francisco:

Revenue bonds .........ccovviiiiiiii 2010 2.80% - 4.00% 4,320

Notes, loans and other payables .............c.cccoeeeevveee.. 2029 4.50% 3,015
Laguna Honda Hospital:

Capital IBASES ..vvvviii e 2012 2.75% - 4.00% 113
Accrued vacation and sick leave .............ccooviiii i, 90,100
Accrued workers' compensation .............cccevvveierieennnnnn. 146,011
Estimated claims payable .................ccoooiviiviinin i, 78,743
Other postemployment benefits obligation ..................... 247,647
Deferred Amounts:

Bond issuance premiums ........ccoeevveivevieiieeneeeeeeeneenn 97,483

Bond issuance disCouNnts ..........ccoceveeviiieiiiiiiiieeieennns (8,257)

Bond refunding ........coooveiiiiiii (119,631)

Business-type activities total long-term obligations ..... $ 5,773,615

* Includes Second Series Revenue Bonds Issue 34 A/ B, 36 A/ B, 36 C/ D, and 37 C / D, which were initially issued as
variable rate bonds in a weekly mode. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the average interest rate on the Issue 34
A and B was 1.86% and 2.04 % respectively; for Issue 36 A and B was 1.29% and 1.34% respectively; for Issue 36 C and
D was 2.80% and 2.39% respectively; and for Issue 37 C and D was 2.94% and 2.36% respectively.

**  The Clean Renewable Energy Bonds issued to fund solar photovoltaic projects carry no interest cost since the effective
equivalent of interest on the bonds is paid in the form of federal tax credits in lieu of interest paid by the issuer.

*** |ncludes an unamortized loan premium of $0.1 million for Parking and Traffic.

Sources of funds to meet debt service requirements are revenues derived from user fees and
charges for services recorded in the respective enterprise funds.
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COMPONENT UNIT

Final
Maturity Remaining
Entity and Type of Obligation Date Interest Rate Amount
San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
and Financing Authority:
Lease Revenue Bonds:

Moscone Convention Center @ ............ccccccovvvveeviennn 2025 2.90% - 7.05% $ 116,605
Hotel tax revenue bonds ® ................cccoooieeiiiiennan . 2026 4.50% - 6.75% 57,080
Financing Authority Bonds:

Tax allocation revenue bonds © ..o, 2038 2.50% - 8.30% 634,714
South Beach Harbor Variable Rate

Refunding bonds @ ..., 2017 Variable 6,300

(0.35% at 6/30/09)
Less deferred amounts:

Bond issuance premiums ........ceevenvervenvineineereeeeee s 9,612

Bond issuance disCounts ............occeeeveiiiiiieiieine i (2,610)

Refunding 10SS ..o (4,504)

Subtotal ..., 817,197
California Department of Boating and

Waterways Loan @ ... 2037 4.50% 7,985
Loans payable ..........ccoooviiiiii 1,511
Accreted interest payable ............ooooiiiiii i 66,640
Accrued vacation and sick leave ...............cooceiiiininnnee, 2,103
Other postemployment benefits obligation ...................... 552

Component unit total long-term obligations ............... $ 895,988

Debt service payments are made from the following sources:

(a) Hotel taxes and operating revenues recorded in the Convention Facilities Special Revenue Fund and existing debt
service/escrow trust funds.

(b) Hotel taxes from hotels located in the Redevelopment Project Areas.

(c) Property taxes allocated to the Redevelopment Agency based on increased assessed valuations in project areas
(note 12) and existing debt service/escrow trust funds.

(d) South Beach Harbor Project cash reserves, property tax increments and project revenues.

(e) South Beach Harbor Project revenues (subordinated to Refunding Bonds).

Debt Compliance

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City
believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Legal Debt Limit and Legal Debt Margin

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s debt limit (3% of valuation subject to taxation) was $4.5 billion. The
total amount of debt applicable to the debt limit was $1.2 billion. The resulting legal debt margin was
$3.3 billion.

Arbitrage

Under U.S. Treasury Department regulations, all governmental tax-exempt debt issued after
August 31, 1986 is subject to arbitrage rebate requirements. The requirements stipulate, in general,
that the earnings from the investment of tax exempt bond proceeds, which exceed related interest
expenditures on the bonds, must be remitted to the Federal government on every fifth anniversary of
each bond issue. The City has evaluated each general obligation bond and certificates of participation
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and has recognized an arbitrage liability of $1.9 million as of June 30, 2009. This arbitrage liability is
reported in deferred credits and other liabilities in the governmental activities of the statement of net
assets. The Finance Corporation has evaluated its lease revenue bonds and a liability of $0.2 million
was reported in the deferred credits and other liabilities in the Internal Service Fund as of
June 30, 2009. Each enterprise fund has performed a similar analysis of its debt, which is subject to
arbitrage rebate requirements. Any material arbitrage liability related to the debt of the enterprise
funds has been recorded as a liability in the respective fund. In addition, the Redevelopment Agency
records any arbitrage liability in deferred credits and other liabilities.

Assessment District

During June 1996, the City issued $1 million of Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds for the
Bayshore Hester Assessment District No. 95-1. These bonds were issued pursuant to the
Improvement Bond Act of 1915. The proceeds were used to finance the construction of a hew public
right-of-way. The bonds began to mature during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 and continue
through 2026 bearing interest from 6.0% to 6.85%. These bonds do not represent obligations of the
City. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the debt has not been included in the basic financial statements. Assessments
collected for repayment of this debt are received in the Tax Collection Agency Fund. Unpaid
assessments constitute fixed liens on the lots and parcels assessed within the Bayshore-Hester
Assessment District and do not constitute a personal indebtedness of the respective owners of such
lots and parcels.

Mortgage Revenue Bonds

In order to facilitate affordable housing, the City issues mortgage revenue bonds for the financing of
multifamily rental housing and for below-market rate mortgage financing for first time homebuyers.
These obligations are secured by the related mortgage indebtedness and are not obligations of the
City. As of June 30, 2009, the aggregate outstanding obligation of such bonds was $149.7 million.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The changes in long-term obligations for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2009,
are as follows:

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
Interest Retirements, Amounts
July 1, Accretion and and Net June 30, Due Within
2008 Net Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds.............ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiinnns $ 1098913 $ 293600 $ (227,372) $ 1,165,141 $ 117,686
Lease revenue bonds.............ccooeevviiiiiiiiiiiiii 282,490 179,605 (167,785) 294,310 18,890
Certificates of participation...............cvvevvvviviiinnns 412,200 163,335 (10,330) 565,205 11,275
Settlement obligation bonds.............ccccoooiiiiinnn. 20,585 - (6,695) 13,890 6,850
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums..........cc.uvvvvveeiinieeinnnnneeens 37,977 12,875 (3,265) 47,587
For issuance diSCOUNtS.............covviuiiieeiiiiniiiins (3,967) (209) 142 (4,034)
ONTEfUNAING. ........ove e, (15,444) (3,491) 2,104 (16,831) -
Total bonds payable...............cccooeieiiiiiniiinnn. 1,832,754 645,715 (413,201) 2,065,268 154,701
LOBNS. .. ettt e e e 12,495 - (1,166) 11,329 1,321
Capital I8SES.......cevviviiiiti et 174,149 5,306 (15,072) 164,383 17,042
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.............ccccoeeeunnnn. 138,203 99,298 (93,973) 143,528 76,008
Accrued workers' compensation................coeeeeereeneenins 204,330 47,005 (38,454) 212,881 39,799
Estimated claims payable..............ccccoveiiiviniinieciniinnn, 114,204 48,902 (18,100) 145,006 43,798
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................... 164,786 174,036 - 338,822 -
Governmental activities long-term obligations......... $ 2,640,921 $ 1,020,262 $ (579,966) $ 3,081,217 $ 332,669
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Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds, the long-term liabilities of which are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At the year ended June 30, 2009,
$293.3 million of lease revenue bonds, $0.7 million of capital leases, $3.4 million of accrued vacation
and sick leave pay, $1.0 million of accrued workers’ compensation, and $7.9 million of other
postemployment benefits obligation are included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental
activities, claims and judgments, compensated absences, and other postemployment benefits
obligations are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2009, are
as follows:

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
Interest Retirements, Amounts
July 1, Accretion and and Net June 30, Due Within
2008 Net Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
San Francisco International Airport
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds.............cooviiiiiiiiiii e $ 3943470 $ -3 (379,765) $ 3,563,705 $ 97,715
Revenue notes - 314,925 - 314,925 -
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums.............ccceeveiininniennan. 56,680 2,867 (4,147) 55,400 -
For issuance discounts.. (8,428) (347) 704 (8,071) -
ON TEfUNGING. ... ..ove et (101,915) (16,047) 28,255 (89,707) -
Total Bonds payable.............ccoooeeviiiiiininn, 3,889,807 301,398 (354,953) 3,836,252 97,715
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 12,913 10,761 (9,792) 13,882 7,410
Accrued workers' compensation 4,836 2,382 (2,004) 5,214 1,015
Estimated claims payable...............c...ccccoviiiiiiininnn 37 271 (242) 66 25
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................. 15,413 16,813 - 32,226 -
Long-term obligations...............ccevviiiiiieineennnens $ 3,923,006 $ 331,625 $ (366,991) $ 3,887,640 $ 106,165

San Francisco Water Enterprise
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds.............ceviiiiiiiiiini $ 946,910 $ - % (25,520) $ 921,390 $ 26,605
Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums.... 25,952 - (1,023) 24,929 -
For issuance discounts.. - - - - -
On refunding............... (14,452) - 1,019 (13,433) -
Total bonds payable.. 958,410 - (25,524) 932,886 26,605
Accreted interest payable..... 3,380 240 - 3,620 -
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay... 10,856 8,715 (8,117) 11,454 6,071
Accrued workers' compensation...... 8,135 2,195 (1,713) 8,617 1,551
Estimated claims payable......................ooooon 11,254 7,946 (9,559) 9,641 2,515
Other postemployment benefits obligation................... 15,048 15,919 - 30,967 -
Long-term obligations............cooeveviieeeiieeeiinees $ 1,007,083 $ 35015 $ (44,913) $ 997,185 $ 36,742
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power
Clean renewable energy bonds ................ccooeeenieinns $ - 0% 6,325 $ (422) $ 5,903 $ 422
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance diSCoUNtS ...........ceuvvviviiiniinieiiinnins - (194) 8 (186) -
Notes, loans, and other payables .............c..cccooeeen. 282 - (282) - -
Total bonds payable................cccooeeiiiinnnns 282 6,131 (696) 5,717 422
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 2,371 1,476 (1,307) 2,540 1,454
Accrued workers' compensation................coeeeiviinnnnn. 2,147 533 (375) 2,305 405
Estimated claims payable..............cccooeiiiiiiiiniis 15,301 - (4,990) 10,311 3,251
Other postemployment benefits obligation................... 2,723 3,076 - 5,799 -
Long-term obligations.............cceveuiveiiiininiinenn $ 22,824 % 11,216 $ (7,368) % 26,672 $ 5532
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2009, are
as follows (continued):

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
Interest Retirements, Amounts
July 1, Accretion and and Net June 30, Due Within
2008 Net Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Municipal Transportation Agency
Bonds payable:
REVENUE DONAS. ......vvviiiieiiiiii e 46,875 $ -8 (1,515) $ 45,360 $ 1,825
Lease revenue bonds... 7,310 - (1,145) 6,165 345
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums...........c.eeveeeiiniiniiennen. 837 - (43) 794 -
Total bonds payable.............ccccovviiiiiiiiiiinninns 55,022 - (2,703) 52,319 2,170
Notes, loans, and other payables.............................. 6,980 - (4,498) 2,482 * 2,369
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 27,023 20,696 (19,077) 28,642 16,868
Accrued workers' compensation. 92,116 14,510 (16,541) 90,085 17,003
Estimated claims payable 55,981 12,872 (21,388) 47,465 18,382
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................. 35,438 38,347 - 73,785 -
Long-term obligations.............c.cccvviiviiiinnieninens 272,560  $ 86,425 % (64,207)  $ 294,778 $ 56,792
* Includes an unamortized loan premium of $0.1 million for Parking and Traffic.
San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center
Capital I8ASES.....cvvviieie et e 3,194 $ 535 $ (1,207) $ 2,522 $ 1,142
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 17,157 13,886 (13,526) 17,517 10,178
Accrued workers' compensation.................cceeeeveiinnne. 21,916 4,651 (4,882) 21,685 3,693
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................... 30,065 32,457 - 62,522 -
Long-term obligations.............cceeevieiiiininiinens 72,332 % 51529 $ (19,615) $ 104,246 $ 15,013
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds.............cooviiiiiiiiiiien e 328,325 $ -3 (35,665) $ 292,660 $ 37,130
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums. ..........c.oeveeeeennenneinnennn. 17,366 - (1,006) 16,360 -
On refunding.........ooevviiiiii (18,218) - 1,727 (16,491) -
Total bonds payable................co.coooiiii. 327,473 - (34,944) 292,529 37,130
State of California - Revolving fund loans................... 89,101 - (13,762) 75,339 14,199
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 4,998 2,904 (2,824) 5,078 2,770
Accrued workers' compensation. 4,675 428 (690) 4,413 774
Estimated claims payable 9,044 1,460 (144) 10,360 1,861
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................. 5,684 5,729 - 11,413 -
Long-term obligations................ccooeuiiiiienienins 440975  $ 10521  $ (52,364) $ 399,132 $ 56,734
Port of San Francisco
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds.............cceviiiiiiiiiiin 8505 $ -0 % (4,185) $ 4,320 $ 4,320
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums...........c.oeeveeeeninenneennennn 76 - (76) - -
On refunding.........ooevveiiii (262) 262 - - -
Total bonds payable.............coocoveeiiiiiiiinninns 8,319 262 (4,261) 4,320 4,320
Notes, loans, and other payables........................... 3,107 - (92) 3,015 96
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...................... 1,941 196 (135) 2,002 1,138
Accrued workers' compensation...................cooeeunns 2,543 274 (510) 2,307 365
Estimated claims payable 1,121 301 (522) 900 600
Other postemployment benefits obligation............... 2,805 3,011 - 5,816 -
Long-term obligations................cc.veuviiiiienieninns 19,836 $ 4,044  $ (5,520) $ 18,360 $ 6519
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2009, are
as follows (continued):

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
Interest Retirements, Amounts
July 1, Accretion and and Net June 30, Due Within
2008 Net Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Laguna Honda Hospital
Capital lASES. .....eeieie e e $ 649 $ -8 (536) $ 113 $ 82
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.. 9,354 7,324 (7,693) 8,985 5,169
Accrued workers' compensation........... 10,908 3,191 (2,714) 11,385 2,093
Other postemployment benefits obligation. 13,207 11,912 - 25,119 -
Long-term obligations $ 34,118 $ 22,427 % (10,943) $ 45,602 $ 7,344
Total Business-type Activities:
Bonds payable:

Revenue bonds .. $ 5,274,085 $ -8 (446,650) $ 4,827,435 $ 167,595
Revenue notes .................... - 314,925 - 314,925 -
Clean renewable energy bonds .. . - 6,325 (422) 5,903 422
Lease revenue bonds .............ccoeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 7,310 - (1,145) 6,165 345

Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums.............ccceeeiiiniiniinnn. 100,911 2,867 (6,295) 97,483 -
For issuance discounts................cooioiiiiiennnns (8,428) (541) 712 (8,257) -
On refunding............... (134,847) (15,785) 31,001 (119,631) -
Total Bonds payable.. 5,239,031 307,791 (422,799) 5,124,023 168,362
Accreted interest payable.............co.oieiiiinii i 3,380 240 - 3,620 -
State of California - Revolving fund loans.. 89,101 - (13,762) 75,339 14,199
Notes, loans, and other payables .............c..cccooeeee . 10,369 - (4,872) 5,497 2,465
Capital 18aSES......oveieiii e 3,843 535 (1,743) 2,635 1,224
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay......................... 86,613 65,958 (62,471) 90,100 51,058
Accrued workers' compensation...................ccoeeeeenee. 147,276 28,164 (29,429) 146,011 26,899
Estimated claims payable................... . 92,738 22,850 (36,845) 78,743 26,634
Other postemployment benefits obligation.................. 120,383 127,264 - 247,647 -
Long-term obligations...............ccouviiviiieineennnens $ 5792734 $ 552,802 $ (571,921) $ 5,773,615 $ 290,841

The changes in long term obligations for the component unit for the year ended June 30, 2009, are as
follows:

Additional Current
Obligations, Maturities
July 1, Interest Retirements, Amounts
2008 Accretion and and Net June 30, Due Within
(as restated) Net Increases Decreases 2009 One Year
Component Unit -
San Francisco Redevelopment Agency
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds..........cccooevvvviviieeenieeiiinnn, $ 845,076 $ - % (36,677) $ 808,399 $ 36,468
Revenue notes ... 6,300 - - 6,300 -
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums. 10,527 - (915) 9,612
For issuance discounts................ccccooeennn (2,721) - 111 (2,610)
Onrefunding..........covvvviiiiiiiiiii, (4,927) - 423 (4,504) -
Total Bonds payable.............c.cccceevvenies 854,255 - (37,058) 817,197 36,468
Accreted interest payable.................cocovve... 69,746 8,942 (12,048) 66,640 12162 @
Notes, loans, and other payables .................... 8,599 @ 904 (7) 9,496 175
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay................ 2,077 26 - 2,103 1,146
Other postemployment benefits obligation......... 493 59 - 552 -
Long-term obligations $ 935,170 $ 9,931 $ (49,113) $ 895988 $ 49,951

@ This amount is included in accrued interest payable in the statement of net assets.

@ During the current fiscal year, the Agency evaluated the nature of some liabilities owed to other agencies and restated its June 30, 2008 net
assets and related other liabilities balance in the amount of $0.6 million to reflect the long-term nature of those liabilities owed to other agencies.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2009,
for governmental activities are as follows:
Governmental Activities @@

Fiscal Year General Obligation Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 117686 $ 55034 $ 18890 $ 8,150 $ 19,446 $ 26343 $ 156,022 $ 89,527
98,315 48,068 17,330 7,538 24,971 26,842 140,616 82,448
86,975 43,605 13,985 7,014 18,626 25,937 119,586 76,556
77,172 40,185 12,545 6,598 18,458 25,137 108,175 71,920
72,004 36,559 10,595 6,213 19,152 24,290 101,751 67,062
302,354 137,559 56,785 26,522 99,225 107,576 458,364 271,657
226,040 77,205 66,740 18,258 103,702 83,450 396,482 178,913
164,104 28,123 73,435 9,031 123,718 55,720 361,257 92,874
20,491 965 24,005 2,009 110,396 24,517 154,892 27,491
- - - - 35,970 7,960 35,970 7,960
- - - - 16,760 763 16,760 763
$ 1165141 $ 467303 $ 294310 $ 91333 $ 590424 $ 408535 $ 2,049875 $ 967,171

The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay, accrued workers’
compensation and other postemployment benefits obligation is not practicable to determine.

Includes the Moscone Center Expansion Project Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2008-1 & 2 which bears
interest at a weekly rate. The rate as of June 30, 2009 was 0.25%, and together with liquidity fee of 0.750% and
remarketing fee of 0.0725%, was used to project the interest payment in this table.

The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of
June 30, 2009 for each enterprise fund is as follows:
San Francisco International Airport &

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010...ciiiieannn. $ 97,715 $ 171,360 $ - $ 18,118 % 97,715 $ 189,478
2011 125,855 166,839 8,620 17,134 134,475 183,973
2012 134,220 161,050 12,160 16,583 146,380 177,633
2013 127,215 154,583 20,015 15,806 147,230 170,389
2014 138,695 148,627 26,600 14,527 165,295 163,154
2015-2019.......... 815,415 633,720 166,605 44,989 982,020 678,709
2020-2024.......... 1,119,060 400,310 25,330 10,970 1,144,390 411,280
2025-2029.......... 860,975 150,715 55,595 5,277 916,570 155,992
2030-2034.......... 144,555 10,799 - - 144,555 10,799
Total............... $ 3,563,705 $ 1,998,003 $ 314,925 $ 143,404 $ 3,878,630 $ 2,141,407
San Francisco Water Enterprise @
Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010...ceiiinennnnn. $ 26,605 $ 42,991 % - $ - $ 26,605 $ 42,991
2011 27,795 41,784 - - 27,795 41,784
2012 29,190 40,401 - - 29,190 40,401
2013, 30,610 38,984 - - 30,610 38,984
2014 32,090 37,510 - - 32,090 37,510
2015-2019.......... 153,470 164,233 - - 153,470 164,233
2020-2024.......... 159,705 128,192 - - 159,705 128,192
2025-2029.......... 184,395 86,839 - - 184,395 86,839
2030-2034.......... 188,280 41,066 - - 188,280 41,066
2035-2039.......... 89,250 6,493 - - 89,250 6,493
Total............... $ 921,390 $ 628,493 % -3 - $ 921,390 $ 628,493

@ The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay, accrued workers’

compensation and other postemployment benefits obligation is not practicable to determine.
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The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds
June 30, 2009 for each enterprise fund is as follows (continued):

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power @

and loans outstanding as of

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010.....cuennanen. 422 $ - $ - $ - $ 422 $ -
2011...ciiene 422 - - - 422 -
2012, 422 - - - 422 -
2013, 422 - - - 422 -
2014, 422 - - - 422 -
2015-2019.......... 2,110 - - - 2,110 -
2020-2024.......... 1,683 - - - 1,683 -
Total............... 5903 $ - $ -3 - $ 5903 $ -
Municipal Transportation Agency @ @
Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010......cunennennn. 2,170 $ 1854 $ 2369 $ 61 $ 4539 % 1,915
2011...ciiene 3,260 2,410 - - 3,260 2,410
2012, 3,405 2,282 - - 3,405 2,282
2013 3,575 2,135 - - 3,575 2,135
2014, 3,750 1,977 - - 3,750 1,977
2015-2019.......... 19,360 6,767 - - 19,360 6,767
2020-2024.......... 7,410 3,377 - - 7,410 3,377
2025-2029.......... 4,895 1,754 - - 4,895 1,754
2030-2034.......... 3,700 111 - - 3,700 111
Total............... 51525 $ 22,667 $ 2,369 $ 61 $ 53894 % 22,728
San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise @
Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010.....cenvnnenen. 37,130 $ 13,183 $ 14199 $ 2307 $ 51,329 $ 15,490
2011....iiene 26,320 11,827 14,648 1,855 40,968 13,682
2012, 22,010 10,959 9,594 1,389 31,604 12,348
2013, 23,095 9,941 8,322 1,099 31,417 11,040
2014, 24,395 8,754 8,192 848 32,587 9,602
2015-2019.......... 90,925 27,001 17,028 1,649 107,953 28,650
2020-2024.......... 62,530 8,197 3,356 147 65,886 8,344
2025-2029.......... 6,255 315 - - 6,255 315
Total............... 292,660 $ 90,177 $ 75339 $ 9294 % 367,999 $ 99,471

(€]

compensation and other postemployment benefits obligation is not practicable to determine.

)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

The annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of
June 30, 2009 for each enterprise fund is as follows (continued):

Port of San Francisco ®

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010...ciiiieennn. $ 4320 $ %% % $ 136 $ 4416 $ 211
2011 - - 100 131 100 131
2012 - - 105 127 105 127
2013, - - 110 122 110 122
2014 - - 115 117 115 117
2015-2019.......... - - 655 504 655 504
2020-2024.......... - - 817 342 817 342
2025-2029.......... - - 1,017 141 1,017 141
Total.............. $ 4320 $ 75 $ 3015 $ 1620 $ 7,335 $ 1,695

Total Business-Type Activities @

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010...ciiiieennn. $ 168,362 $ 229,463 $ 16,664 $ 20,622 $ 185,026 $ 250,085
2011 183,652 222,860 23,368 19,120 207,020 241,980
2012 189,247 214,692 21,859 18,099 211,106 232,791
2013, 184,917 205,643 28,447 17,027 213,364 222,670
2014 199,352 196,868 34,907 15,492 234,259 212,360
2015-2019.......... 1,081,280 831,721 184,288 47,142 1,265,568 878,863
2020-2024.......... 1,350,388 540,076 29,503 11,459 1,379,891 551,535
2025-2029.......... 1,056,520 239,623 56,612 5,418 1,113,132 245,041
2030-2034.......... 336,535 51,976 - - 336,535 51,976
2035-2039.......... 89,250 6,493 - - 89,250 6,493
Total............... $ 4839503 $ 2,739,415 $ 395648 $ 154379 $ 5235151 $ 2,893,794

@ The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay, accrued workers’

compensation and other postemployment benefits obligation is not practicable to determine.

@ Unamortized loan premiums of $0.1 million (MTA) are not included in principal payments.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of
June 30, 2009, for the component unit are as follows:

Component Unit - San Fr